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Forward-looking statements in this document are subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results,
performance or achievements of Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. ("GLPI") and its subsidiaries (collectively, the "Company") to be materially different from
any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements include information
concerning the Company’s business strategy, plans, goals and objectives.

 
Statements preceded by, followed by or that otherwise include the words "believes," "expects," "anticipates," "intends," "projects," "estimates," "plans,"

"may increase," "may fluctuate," and similar expressions or future or conditional verbs such as "will," "should," "would," "may" and "could" are generally forward-
looking in nature and not historical facts. You should understand that the following important factors could affect future results and could cause actual results to
differ materially from those expressed in such forward-looking statements:

• the ability to receive, or delays in obtaining, the regulatory approvals required to own and/or operate our properties, or other delays or impediments to
completing our planned acquisitions or projects;

• the ultimate timing and outcome of our proposed acquisition of substantially all of the real estate assets of Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. ("Pinnacle");
    

• the possibility that the proposed transaction with Pinnacle may not be completed or that completion may be unduly delayed and the results of integrating
the assets to be acquired by us in the proposed transaction;

• the effects of a transaction between our company and Pinnacle on each party, including the post-transaction impact on our financial condition, operating
results, strategy and plans;

• the ability to consummate our anticipated acquisition of the equity interests of PA Meadows, LLC, the owner of the Meadows Racetrack & Casino (the
"Meadows"), including consummation of our announced transaction to sell the Meadows operating assets to Pinnacle and enter into a long-term lease with
Pinnacle;

• our ability to maintain our status as a real estate investment trust ("REIT"), given the highly technical and complex Internal Revenue Code (the "Code")
provisions for which only limited judicial and administrative authorities exist, where even a technical or inadvertent violation could jeopardize REIT
qualification and where requirements may depend in part on the actions of third parties over which the Company has no control or only limited influence;

• the satisfaction of certain asset, income, organizational, distribution, shareholder ownership and other requirements on a continuing basis in order for the
Company to maintain its elected REIT status;

• the ability and willingness of our tenants, operators and other third parties to meet and/or perform their obligations under their respective contractual
arrangements with us, including, in some cases, their obligations to indemnify, defend and hold us harmless from and against various claims, litigation
and liabilities;

• the ability of our tenants and operators to maintain the financial strength and liquidity necessary to satisfy their respective obligations and liabilities to
third parties, including without limitation to obligations under their existing credit facilities and other indebtedness;

• the ability of our tenants and operators to comply with laws, rules and regulations in the operation of our properties, to deliver high quality services, to
attract and retain qualified personnel and to attract customers;

• the availability of and the ability to identify suitable and attractive acquisition and development opportunities and the ability to acquire and lease the
respective properties on favorable terms;

• the degree and nature of our competition;

• the ability to generate sufficient cash flows to service our outstanding indebtedness;

• the access to debt and equity capital markets;

• adverse changes in our credit rating;

• fluctuating interest rates;
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• the impact of global or regional economic conditions;

• the availability of qualified personnel and our ability to retain our key management personnel;

• GLPI's duty to indemnify Penn National Gaming, Inc. and its subsidiaries ("Penn") in certain circumstances if the spin-off transaction described in Note 1
to the condensed consolidated financial statements fails to be tax-free;

• changes in the United States tax law and other state, federal or local laws, whether or not specific to real estate, real estate investment trusts or to the
gaming, lodging or hospitality industries;

• changes in accounting standards;

• the impact of weather events or conditions, natural disasters, acts of terrorism and other international hostilities, war or political instability;

• other risks inherent in the real estate business, including potential liability relating to environmental matters and illiquidity of real estate investments; and

• additional factors as discussed in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015 , and Current Reports on Form 8-K
as filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

 
Certain of these factors and other factors, risks and uncertainties are discussed in the "Risk Factors" section in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-

K for the year ended December 31, 2015 . Other unknown or unpredictable factors may also cause actual results to differ materially from those projected by the
forward-looking statements. Most of these factors are difficult to anticipate and are generally beyond the control of the Company.

 
You should consider the areas of risk described above, as well as those set forth in the "Risk Factors" section in the Company’s Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015 , in connection with considering any forward-looking statements that may be made by the Company generally.
Except for the ongoing obligations of the Company to disclose material information under the federal securities laws, the Company does not undertake any
obligation to release publicly any revisions to any forward-looking statements, to report events or to report the occurrence of unanticipated events unless required
to do so by law.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets
(amounts in thousands, except share data)

 

 
March 31, 

2016  December 31, 2015

 (unaudited)   
Assets    

Real estate investments, net $ 2,066,376  $ 2,090,059
Property and equipment, used in operations, net 126,755  129,747
Cash and cash equivalents 61,561  41,875
Prepaid expenses 7,362  7,908
Other current assets 58,376  57,721
Goodwill 75,521  75,521
Other intangible assets 9,577  9,577
Debt issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization of $9,500 and $5,937 at March 31, 2016 and December 31,

2015, respectively —  3,563
Loan receivable 27,813  29,350
Deferred tax assets, non-current 2,500  2,447
Other assets 388  387

Total assets $ 2,436,229  $ 2,448,155

    
Liabilities    

Accounts payable $ 490  $ 406
Accrued expenses 12,343  9,580
Accrued interest 42,848  17,623
Accrued salaries and wages 5,096  13,719
Gaming, property, and other taxes 25,351  24,702
Current maturities of long-term debt 104  102
Other current liabilities 18,390  17,687
Long-term debt, net of current maturities and unamortized debt issuance costs 2,468,881  2,510,239
Deferred rental revenue 121,335  107,379
Deferred tax liabilities, non-current 206  232

Total liabilities 2,695,044  2,701,669
    
Shareholders’ deficit    
    

Preferred stock ($.01 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized, no shares issued or outstanding at March 31, 2016
and December 31, 2015) —  —

Common stock ($.01 par value, 500,000,000 shares authorized, 117,027,925 and 115,594,321 shares issued at
March 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively) 1,170  1,156

Additional paid-in capital 962,826  935,220
Retained deficit (1,222,811)  (1,189,890)

Total shareholders’ deficit (258,815)  (253,514)

Total liabilities and shareholders’ deficit $ 2,436,229  $ 2,448,155
 

See accompanying notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements.

4



Table of Contents

Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income

(in thousands, except per share data)
(unaudited)

 
        

 

Three Months Ended March 31,

 

2016  2015

    
Revenues

 

 
 

Rental $ 100,215  $ 97,548
Real estate taxes paid by tenants 11,827  13,350

Total rental revenue 112,042  110,898
Gaming 35,383  36,379
Food, beverage and other 2,776  2,815

Total revenues 150,201  150,092
Less promotional allowances (1,381)  (1,387)

Net revenues 148,820  148,705
    
Operating expenses

 

 
 

Gaming 18,934  19,016
Food, beverage and other 2,053  2,184
Real estate taxes 12,207  13,755
General and administrative 20,906  21,539
Depreciation 27,083  27,411

Total operating expenses 81,183  83,905
Income from operations 67,637  64,800
    
Other income (expenses)

 

 
 

Interest expense (33,401)  (29,562)
Interest income 517  595

Total other expenses (32,884)  (28,967)
    

Income before income taxes 34,753  35,833
Income tax expense 2,004  2,702

Net income $ 32,749  $ 33,131

    

Earnings per common share:
 

 
 

Basic earnings per common share $ 0.28  $ 0.29
Diluted earnings per common share $ 0.27  $ 0.28
    

Dividends paid per common share $ 0.56  $ 0.55
 

See accompanying notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Deficit

(in thousands, except share data)
(unaudited)

 

 

Common Stock  Additional
Paid-In
Capital

 
Retained
Deficit

 Total
Shareholders’

Deficit
 

Shares  Amount    
Balance, December 31, 2015 115,594,321  $ 1,156  $ 935,220  $ (1,189,890)  $ (253,514)

Stock option activity 1,331,805  13  24,519  —  24,532
Restricted stock activity 101,799  1  3,087  —  3,088
Dividends paid —  —  —  (65,670)  (65,670)
Net income —  —  —  32,749  32,749

Balance, March 31, 2016 117,027,925  $ 1,170  $ 962,826  $ (1,222,811)  $ (258,815)
 

See accompanying notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries
  Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)
(unaudited)

 

Three months ended March 31,  2016  2015

     
Operating activities  

 

 
 

Net income  $ 32,749  $ 33,131
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:  

 

 
 

Depreciation  27,083  27,411
Amortization of debt issuance costs  5,582  2,020
(Gains) losses on dispositions of property  (15)  1
Deferred income taxes  (79)  (386)
Stock-based compensation  4,572  4,394
Straight-line rent adjustments  13,956  13,956
(Increase), decrease  

 

 
 

Prepaid expenses and other current assets  3,849  838
Other assets  (1)  —

Increase, (decrease)  
 

 
 

Accounts payable  45  (1,345)
Accrued expenses  (987)  415
Accrued interest  25,225  24,903
Accrued salaries and wages  (8,623)  (6,194)
Gaming, property and other taxes  (201)  (406)
Income taxes  —  1,572
Other current and non-current liabilities  703  449

Net cash provided by operating activities  103,858  100,759
Investing activities  

 

 
 

Capital project expenditures, net of reimbursements  (265)  (5,640)
Capital maintenance expenditures  (362)  (951)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment  233  5
Principal payments on loan receivable  1,537  538
Other investing activities  —  (36)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities  1,143  (6,084)
Financing activities  

 

 
 

Dividends paid  (65,670)  (62,651)
Proceeds from exercise of options  23,089  10,394
Financing costs  (709)  —
Payments of long-term debt  (42,025)  (33,024)

Net cash used in financing activities  (85,315)  (85,281)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  19,686  9,394
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period  41,875  35,973

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period  $ 61,561  $ 45,367
 

See accompanying notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc.
Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(unaudited)
 

1.               Business and Operations
 

Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. ("GLPI") is a self-administered and self-managed Pennsylvania real estate investment trust ("REIT"). GLPI (together
with its subsidiaries, the "Company") was incorporated on February 13, 2013, as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Penn National Gaming, Inc. ("Penn"). On
November 1, 2013, Penn contributed to GLPI, through a series of internal corporate restructurings, substantially all of the assets and liabilities associated with
Penn’s real property interests and real estate development business, as well as the assets and liabilities of Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge and Hollywood Casino
Perryville, which are referred to as the "TRS Properties," and then spun-off GLPI to holders of Penn's common and preferred stock in a tax-free distribution (the
"Spin-Off"). The Company elected on its United States ("U.S.") federal income tax return for its taxable year beginning on January 1, 2014 to be treated as a REIT
and the Company, together with an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, GLP Holdings, Inc., jointly elected to treat each of GLP Holdings, Inc.,
Louisiana Casino Cruises, Inc. (d/b/a Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge) and Penn Cecil Maryland, Inc. (d/b/a Hollywood Casino Perryville) as a "taxable REIT
subsidiary" ("TRS") effective on the first day of the first taxable year of GLPI as a REIT. As a result of the Spin-Off, GLPI owns substantially all of Penn’s former
real property assets and leases back most of those assets to Penn for use by its subsidiaries, under a master lease, a triple-net operating lease with an initial term of
15 years with no purchase option, followed by four 5 year renewal options (exercisable by Penn) on the same terms and conditions (the "Penn Master Lease"), and
GLPI also owns and operates the TRS Properties through an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, GLP Holdings, Inc.

 
GLPI’s primary business consists of acquiring, financing, and owning real estate property to be leased to gaming operators in triple-net lease

arrangements. As of March 31, 2016 , GLPI’s portfolio consisted of 21 gaming and related facilities, including the TRS Properties, the real property associated
with 18 gaming and related facilities operated by Penn and the real property associated with the Casino Queen in East St. Louis, Illinois.  These facilities are
geographically diversified across 12 states.

GLPI expects to grow its portfolio by pursuing opportunities to acquire additional gaming facilities to lease to gaming operators under prudent terms,
including its July 2015 announcement of the proposed acquisition of substantially all of the real estate assets of Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc. ("Pinnacle") and its
December 2015 announcement of the resolution of the previously disclosed litigation with The Meadows Racetrack and Casino (the "Meadows") and entry into an
amended purchase agreement with Cannery Casino Resorts LLC, the owner of the Meadows. Furthermore, in March 2016, the Company announced it had entered
into an agreement to sell the entities holding the Meadows gaming and racing licenses and operating assets to Pinnacle. GLPI will lease the Pinnacle and the
Meadows real property assets to Pinnacle under separate triple-net leases. The Pinnacle transaction is expected to close during April 2016, while both transactions
involving the Meadows are expected to close during the late third quarter of 2016. However, we cannot predict the actual dates on which the transactions will be
completed because each transaction is subject to conditions beyond such parties' control.

On July 20, 2015, GLPI, Gold Merger Sub, LLC, a direct, wholly owned subsidiary of GLPI ("Merger Sub"), and Pinnacle entered into a merger
agreement (as it may be amended from time to time, the "Merger Agreement") providing for the merger of Pinnacle with and into Merger Sub, with Merger Sub
surviving the merger as a wholly owned subsidiary of GLPI (the "Merger"). Following the consummation of the Merger, GLPI will own all of Pinnacle’s real
property assets, other than Pinnacle’s Belterra Park property and excess land at certain locations. In order to effect the acquisition of Pinnacle’s real property assets
(other than the Belterra Park property and excess land at certain locations), prior to the Merger, Pinnacle will cause certain assets relating to its operating business
to be transferred to, and liabilities relating thereto to be assumed by a newly formed wholly owned subsidiary of Pinnacle ("OpCo"). Immediately following the
separation, Pinnacle will distribute to Pinnacle’s stockholders all of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of OpCo owning Pinnacle’s operating
assets and certain other specified assets. Then, upon satisfaction or waiver of the conditions to closing in the Merger Agreement on the closing date, Pinnacle will
merge with and into Merger Sub, as described in more detail in the joint proxy statement/prospectus filed with a Registration Statement on Form S-4 (No. 333-
206649) initially filed by GLPI with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 23, 2015 and declared effective on February 16, 2016 (the "Joint
Proxy Statement/Prospectus"). Merger Sub, as the surviving company in the Merger, will then own substantially all of Pinnacle’s real estate assets that were
retained or transferred to Pinnacle in the separation and will lease those assets back to OpCo pursuant to a triple-net 35 year (including extension renewals) master
lease agreement (the "Pinnacle Master Lease Agreement) substantially in the form attached as Exhibit B to the Merger Agreement. A wholly-owned subsidiary of
OpCo would operate the leased gaming facilities as a tenant under the Pinnacle Master Lease Agreement.
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At the effective time of the Merger, each share of Pinnacle common stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger
will be converted into 0.85 shares of a share of GLPI common stock, with cash paid in lieu of the issuance of fractional shares of GLPI common stock. The
exchange ratio will not be adjusted to reflect changes in the price of GLPI common stock or the price of Pinnacle common stock occurring prior to the completion
of the Merger. The obligations of GLPI and Pinnacle to effect the Merger are subject to the satisfaction or waiver of certain conditions set forth in the Merger
Agreement. Substantially all of the conditions to closing the Merger, including each company's stockholders' approval and gaming regulatory approvals have been
satisfied and the Company expects the Merger to close at the end of April 2016. Upon completion of the Merger, the current directors and officers of GLPI are
expected to continue in their current positions, other than as may be publicly announced by GLPI in the normal course of business.

Approval by GLPI shareholders and Pinnacle stockholders was obtained at separate special meetings held on March 15, 2016. At the GLPI special
meeting, GLPI shareholders voted on (i) a proposal to approve the issuance of GLPI common stock to Pinnacle stockholders in the Merger and (ii) a proposal to
approve one or more adjournments of the meeting to another date, time or place, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies in favor of the proposal to
approve the issuance of shares of GLPI common stock to Pinnacle stockholders in the Merger. At the Pinnacle special meeting, Pinnacle stockholders voted on (i)
a proposal to adopt the Merger Agreement, (ii) an advisory (non-binding) proposal to approve certain compensation that may be paid or become payable to the
named executive officers of Pinnacle in connection with the Merger, and (iii) a proposal to approve one or more adjournments of the meeting to another date, time
or place, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies in favor of the proposal to approve the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by the
Merger Agreement. The Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus describes the foregoing proposals in more detail, as well as other matters contemplated in connection
with the proposed Merger.

On March 25, 2016, the Company and Pinnacle entered into the First Amendment to the Merger Agreement which extended the closing date of the
Merger to April 30, 2016. The Merger Agreement may be terminated, subject to certain exceptions, prior to the effective time of the Merger by either GLPI or
Pinnacle under certain conditions, including if the Merger has not been consummated on or before April 30, 2016, subject to one two -month extension by GLPI, at
the election of GLPI, if the only conditions not satisfied at such time related to regulatory and other government approvals.

2.               Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") for interim financial information and with the instructions for Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X.
Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by GAAP for complete consolidated financial statements. In the opinion of
management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included.

 
The condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of GLPI and its subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions

have been eliminated in consolidation.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses for the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

 
Operating results for the three months ended March 31, 2016 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending

December 31, 2016 . The notes to the consolidated financial statements contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015 (our
"Annual Report") should be read in conjunction with these condensed consolidated financial statements. The December 31, 2015 financial information has been
derived from the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements.

3.    New Accounting Pronouncements

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2015-02, Consolidation (Topic
810): Amendments to the Consolidation Analysis ("ASU 2015-02"). ASU 2015-02 affects reporting entities that are required to evaluate whether they should
consolidate certain legal entities. Specifically, the amendments: (i) modify the evaluation of whether limited partnerships and similar legal entities are variable
interest entities ("VIEs") or voting interest entities, (ii) eliminate the presumption that a general partner should consolidate a limited partnership, (iii) affect the
consolidation analysis of reporting entities that are involved with VIEs, and (iv) provide a scope
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exception for certain entities. The Company adopted ASU 2015-02 on January 1, 2016 and it had no affect on the Company's financial statements.

Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-09, Compensation - Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment
Accounting ("ASU 2016-09"). This ASU amends certain aspects of accounting for share-based payments to employees, including (i) requiring all income tax
effects of share-based awards to be recognized in the income statement when the award vests or settles and eliminating APIC pools, (ii) permitting employers to
withhold the share equivalent of an employee's maximum tax liability without triggering liability accounting and (iii) allowing companies to make a policy election
to account for forfeitures as they occur. ASU 2016-09 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017 and early adoption is permitted.
The Company is evaluating the impact of adopting ASU 2016-09 on its financial statements, but does not believe the new guidance will have a significant impact
on how it accounts for share-based payments.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) ("ASU 2016-02"). This ASU primarily provides new guidance for lessees on
the accounting treatment of operating leases. Under the new guidance, lessees are required to recognize assets and liabilities arising from operating leases on the
balance sheet. ASU 2016-02 also aligns lessor accounting with the revenue recognition guidance in Topic 606 of the Accounting Standards Codification. ASU
2016-02 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018 and is required to be adopted on a modified retrospective basis, meaning the
new leasing model will be applied to the earliest year presented in the financial statements and thereafter. The Company is evaluating the impact of adopting this
new accounting standard on its financial statements, but does not expect adoption of the new guidance to have a significant impact on the accounting treatment of
its triple-net leases, which are the primary source of revenue to the Company.
 

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) ("ASU 2014-09"). This new standard will replace all
current U.S. GAAP guidance on this topic and eliminate all industry-specific guidance. ASU 2014-09 provides a unified model to determine when and how
revenue is recognized. The core principle is that a company should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration for which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. At the April 1, 2015 FASB meeting, the
board voted to defer the effective date for the new revenue recognition standard to annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017. The
pronouncement was originally effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, and companies are permitted to elect the adoption of the
standard as of the original effective date. When adopted, the new guidance can be applied either retrospectively to each period presented or as a cumulative-effect
adjustment as of the date of adoption. The Company is evaluating the impact of adopting this new accounting standard on its financial statements and internal
revenue recognition policies.

 
4.               Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
 
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
 

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate:
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents
 
The fair value of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents approximates the carrying value of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents, due to the short

maturity of the cash equivalents.

Deferred Compensation Plan Assets and Corresponding Liabilities

The Company's deferred compensation plan assets consist of open-ended mutual funds and as such the fair value measurement of the assets is considered
a Level 1 measurement as defined under Accounting Standards Code ("ASC") 820 "Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures." Deferred compensation plan assets
are included within other current assets on the condensed consolidated balance sheets. Deferred compensation liabilities approximate the plan's assets and are
included with current liabilities on the condensed consolidated balance sheets. The difference between the Company's deferred compensation plan assets and
liabilities at both March 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 is related to timing differences between the funding of assets held at the plan trustee and the actual
contributions from eligible employees' compensation.
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Loan Receivable

The fair value of the loan receivable approximates the carrying value of the Company's loan receivable, as collection on the outstanding loan balance is
reasonably assured and the interest rate approximates market rates for a similar instrument. The fair value measurement of the loan receivable is considered a Level
3 measurement as defined under ASC 820.

Long-term Debt
 
The fair value of the senior unsecured notes and senior unsecured credit facility is estimated based on quoted prices in active markets and as such is a

Level 1 measurement as defined under ASC 820 "Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures."
 
The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are as follows (in thousands):

 

March 31, 2016  December 31, 2015

 

Carrying
Amount  

Fair
Value  

Carrying
Amount  

Fair
Value

Financial assets:
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 61,561  $ 61,561  $ 41,875  $ 41,875
Deferred compensation plan assets 14,964  14,964  14,833  14,833
Loan receivable 27,813  27,813  29,350  29,350

Financial liabilities:
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Deferred compensation plan liabilities 15,446  15,446  14,866  14,866
Long-term debt

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Senior unsecured credit facility 448,000  440,160  490,000  479,612
Senior notes 2,050,000  2,084,925  2,050,000  2,014,750

 
Comprehensive Income
 

Comprehensive income includes net income and all other non-owner changes in shareholders’ equity during a period. The Company did not have any
non-owner changes in shareholders’ equity for the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 , and comprehensive income for the three months ended
March 31, 2016 and 2015 was equivalent to net income for those time periods.

 
Revenue Recognition and Promotional Allowances
 

The Company recognizes rental revenue from tenants, including rental abatements, lease incentives and contractually fixed increases attributable to
operating leases, on a straight-line basis over the term of the related leases when collectability is reasonably assured. Additionally, percentage rent that is fixed and
determinable at the lease inception date is recorded on a straight-line basis over the lease term, resulting in the recognition of deferred rental revenue on the
Company’s condensed consolidated balance sheets. Deferred rental revenue is amortized to rental revenue on a straight-line basis over the remainder of the lease
term. The lease term includes the initial non-cancelable lease term and any reasonably assured renewable periods. Contingent rental income that is not fixed and
determinable at lease inception is recognized only when the lessee achieves the specified target. Recognition of rental income commences when control of the
facility has been transferred to the tenant.
 

As of March 31, 2016 , all but one of the Company’s real estate investment properties were leased to a subsidiary of Penn under the Penn Master Lease.
The obligations under the Penn Master Lease are guaranteed by Penn and by most Penn subsidiaries that occupy and operate the facilities leased under the Penn
Master Lease. A default by Penn or its subsidiaries with regard to any facility will cause a default with regard to the Penn Master Lease. In January 2014, GLPI
completed the asset acquisition of Casino Queen in East St. Louis, Illinois. GLPI subsequently leased the property back to Casino Queen on a triple-net basis on
terms similar to those in the Penn Master Lease.

 
The rent structure under the Penn Master Lease includes a fixed component, a portion of which is subject to an annual 2% escalator if certain rent

coverage ratio thresholds are met, and a component that is based on the performance of the facilities, which is adjusted, subject to certain floors (i) every five years
by an amount equal to 4% of the average change in net revenues of all facilities under the Penn Master Lease (other than Hollywood Casino Columbus and
Hollywood Casino Toledo) during the preceding five years , and (ii) monthly by an amount equal to 20% of the change in net revenues of Hollywood Casino
Columbus and Hollywood Casino Toledo during the preceding month. In addition to rent, all properties under the Penn Master Lease are required to pay the
following: (1) all facility maintenance, (2) all insurance required in connection with the
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leased properties and the business conducted on the leased properties, (3) taxes levied on or with respect to the leased properties (other than taxes on the income of
the lessor) and (4) all utilities and other services necessary or appropriate for the leased properties and the business conducted on the leased properties.

The rent structure under the Casino Queen lease also includes a fixed component, a portion of which is subject to an annual 2% escalator if certain rent
coverage ratio thresholds are met, and a component that is based on the performance of the facility, which is reset every five years to a fixed amount equal to the
greater of (i) the annual amount of non-fixed rent applicable for the lease year immediately preceding such rent reset year and (ii) an amount equal to 4% of the
average annual net revenues of the facility for the trailing five year period. Similar to the Penn Master Lease, the tenant is responsible for all executory charges
described in the above paragraph.

The Company determined, based on facts and circumstances prevailing at the time of each lease's inception, that neither Penn nor Casino Queen could
effectively operate and run their respective business without the properties that are leased to it under the respective lease agreements with GLPI. Furthermore, at
lease inception, all of Casino Queen's revenues and substantially all of Penn's revenues were generated from operations in connection with the leased properties.
There are also various legal restrictions in the jurisdictions in which Penn and Casino Queen operate that limit the availability and location of gaming facilities,
which makes relocation or replacement of the leased gaming facilities restrictive and potentially impracticable or unavailable. Moreover, under the terms of the
Penn Master Lease, Penn must make its renewal election with respect to all of the leased property together; the tenant is not entitled to selectively renew certain of
the leased property while not renewing other property. Accordingly, the Company concluded that failure by Penn or Casino Queen to renew the lease would
impose a significant penalty on such tenant such that renewal of all lease renewal options appears at lease inception to be reasonably assured. Therefore, the
Company concluded that the term of the leases with both Penn and Casino Queen is 35 years, equal to the initial 15 year term plus all four of the 5 year renewal
options.

 
Additionally, in accordance with ASC 605, "Revenue Recognition," the Company records revenue for the real estate taxes paid by its tenants on the

leased properties with an offsetting expense in real estate taxes within the condensed consolidated statement of income as the Company has concluded it is the
primary obligor.

 
Gaming revenue generated by the TRS Properties mainly consists of video lottery gaming revenue, and to a lesser extent, table game and poker revenue.

Video lottery gaming revenue is the aggregate net difference between gaming wins and losses with liabilities recognized for funds deposited by customers before
gaming play occurs, for "ticket-in, ticket-out" coupons in the customers’ possession, and for accruals related to the anticipated payout of progressive jackpots.
Progressive slot machines, which contain base jackpots that increase at a progressive rate based on the number of coins played, are charged to revenue as the
amount of the jackpots increases. Table game gaming revenue is the aggregate of table drop adjusted for the change in aggregate table chip inventory. Table drop is
the total dollar amount of the currency, coins, chips, tokens, outstanding counter checks (markers), and front money that are removed from the live gaming tables.
Additionally, food and beverage revenue is recognized as services are performed.
 

The following table discloses the components of gaming revenue within the condensed consolidated statements of income for the three months ended
March 31, 2016 and 2015 :

        

 

Three Months Ended March 31,

 

2016  2015

 

(in thousands)
Video lottery $ 30,353  $ 31,241
Table game 4,716  4,810
Poker 314  328

Total gaming revenue, net of cash incentives $ 35,383  $ 36,379
 

Gaming revenue is recognized net of certain sales incentives in accordance with ASC 605-50, "Revenue Recognition— Customer Payments and
Incentives." The Company records certain sales incentives and points earned in point-loyalty programs as a reduction of revenue.
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The retail value of food and beverage and other services furnished to guests without charge is included in gross revenues and then deducted as
promotional allowances. The amounts included in promotional allowances for the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows: 

        

 

Three Months Ended March 31,

 

2016  2015

 

(in thousands)
Food and beverage $ 1,349  $ 1,377
Other 32  10

Total promotional allowances $ 1,381  $ 1,387
 

The estimated cost of providing such complimentary services, which is primarily included in food, beverage, and other expense, for the three months
ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows: 

        

 

Three Months Ended March 31,

 

2016  2015

 

(in thousands)
Food and beverage $ 534  $ 596
Other 14  3

Total cost of complimentary services $ 548  $ 599
 
Gaming and Admission Taxes
 

For the TRS Properties, the Company is subject to gaming and admission taxes based on gross gaming revenues in the jurisdictions in which it operates.
The Company primarily recognizes gaming tax expense based on the statutorily required percentage of revenue that is required to be paid to state and local
jurisdictions in the states where wagering occurs. At Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge, the gaming and admission tax is based on graduated tax rates. At Hollywood
Casino Perryville, the gaming tax rate is flat. The Company records gaming and admission taxes at the Company’s estimated effective gaming tax rate for the year,
considering estimated taxable gaming revenue and the applicable rates. Such estimates are adjusted each interim period. If gaming and admission tax rates change
during the year, such changes are applied prospectively in the determination of gaming and admission tax expense in future interim periods.  For the three months
ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 , these expenses, which are primarily recorded within gaming expense in the condensed consolidated statements of income, totaled
$14.7 million and $14.9 million , respectively.

Earnings Per Share
 

The Company calculates earnings per share ("EPS") in accordance with ASC 260, "Earnings Per Share." Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income
applicable to common stock by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period, excluding net income attributable to participating
securities (unvested restricted stock awards). Diluted EPS reflects the additional dilution for all potentially-dilutive securities such as stock options, unvested
restricted shares and unvested performance-based restricted shares. In accordance with ASC 260 "Earnings per Share", the Company includes all performance-
based restricted shares that would have vested based upon the Company’s performance at quarter-end in the calculation of diluted EPS. Diluted EPS for the
Company's common stock is computed using the more dilutive of the two-class method or the treasury stock method.
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The following table reconciles the weighted-average common shares outstanding used in the calculation of basic EPS to the weighted-average common
shares outstanding used in the calculation of diluted EPS for the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands): 

        

 

Three Months Ended March 31,

 

2016  2015

 

(in thousands)
Determination of shares:

 

 
 

Weighted-average common shares outstanding 116,671  113,666
Assumed conversion of dilutive employee stock-based awards 1,821  4,232
Assumed conversion of restricted stock 122  219
Assumed conversion of performance-based restricted stock awards 203  382

Diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding 118,817  118,499
 

The following table presents the calculation of basic and diluted EPS for the Company’s common stock for the three months ended March 31, 2016 and
2015 : 

        

 

Three Months Ended March 31,

 

2016  2015

 

(in thousands, except per share data)
Calculation of basic EPS:

 

 
 

Net income $ 32,749  $ 33,131
Less: Net income allocated to participating securities (135)  (151)
Net income attributable to common shareholders $ 32,614  $ 32,980
Weighted-average common shares outstanding 116,671  113,666
Basic EPS $ 0.28  $ 0.29
    
Calculation of diluted EPS:

 

 
 

Net income $ 32,749  $ 33,131
Diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding 118,817  118,499
Diluted EPS $ 0.27  $ 0.28

 There were 257,321 and 15,529 outstanding options to purchase shares of common stock during the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 ,
respectively, that were not included in the computation of diluted EPS because of being antidilutive.

Stock-Based Compensation
 

The Company accounts for stock compensation under ASC 718, "Compensation - Stock Compensation," which requires the Company to expense the cost
of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant-date fair value of the award. This expense is recognized ratably
over the requisite service period following the date of grant. The fair value for stock options is estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model. The fair value of the Company's time-based restricted stock awards is equivalent to the closing stock price on the day of grant. The Company utilizes a third
party valuation firm to measure the fair value of performance-based restricted stock awards at grant date using the Monte Carlo model.

 
Additionally, the cash-settled phantom stock units ("PSU") entitle employees to receive cash based on the fair value of the Company’s common stock on

the vesting date. These PSUs are accounted for as liability awards and are re-measured at fair value each reporting period until they become vested with
compensation expense being recognized over the requisite service period in accordance with ASC 718-30, "Compensation-Stock Compensation, Awards Classified
as Liabilities."

 
In connection with the Spin-Off, each outstanding option with respect to Penn common stock outstanding on the distribution date was converted into two

awards, an adjusted Penn option and a GLPI option. The adjustment preserved the aggregate intrinsic value of the options. Additionally, in connection with the
Spin-Off, holders of outstanding restricted stock
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and PSUs with respect to Penn common stock became entitled to an additional share of restricted stock or PSU with respect to GLPI common stock for each share
of Penn restricted stock or PSU held.

The adjusted options, as well as the restricted stock awards and PSUs, otherwise remain subject to their original terms, except that for purposes of the
adjusted Penn awards (including in determining exercisability and the post-termination exercise period), continued service with GLPI following the distribution
date shall be deemed continued service with Penn; and for purposes of the GLPI awards (including in determining exercisability and the post-termination exercise
period), continued service with Penn following the distribution date shall be deemed continued service with GLPI.

The unrecognized compensation relating to both Penn and GLPI’s stock options, restricted stock awards, performance-based restricted stock awards and
PSUs held by GLPI employees is amortized to expense over the awards’ remaining vesting periods.

As of March 31, 2016 , there was no remaining unrecognized compensation cost for stock options. For the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015,
the Company recognized $20 thousand and $0.7 million , respectively, of compensation expense associated with these awards. In addition, the Company also
recognized $2.3 million and $2.9 million of compensation expense for the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, relating to each of the first
quarter $0.56 and $0.55 , respectively, per share dividends paid on vested employee stock options.

 
As of March 31, 2016 , there was $11.5 million of total unrecognized compensation cost for restricted stock awards that will be recognized over the grants

remaining weighted average vesting period of 1.85 years . For the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company recognized $1.8 million and $1.4
million , respectively, of compensation expense associated with these awards.

The following table contains information on restricted stock award activity for the three months ended March 31, 2016 :

 

Number of Award
Shares

Outstanding at December 31, 2015 463,764
Granted 168,966
Released (151,245)
Canceled —

Outstanding at March 31, 2016 481,485
 

Performance-based restricted stock awards have a three year cliff vesting with the amount of restricted shares vesting at the end of the three -year period
determined based on the Company’s performance as measured against its peers.  More specifically, the percentage of shares vesting at the end of the measurement
period will be based on the Company’s three -year total shareholder return measured against the three -year return of the MSCI US REIT index.  As of March 31,
2016 , there was $17.9 million of total unrecognized compensation cost, which will be recognized over the performance-based restricted stock awards' remaining
weighted average vesting period of 2.06 years .  For the three months ended March 31, 2016 , and 2015, the Company recognized $2.7 million and $2.2 million ,
respectively, of compensation expense associated with these awards.

The following table contains information on performance-based restricted stock award activity for the three months ended March 31, 2016 :

 
Number of  Performance-
Based Award Shares

Outstanding at December 31, 2015 1,091,556
Granted 558,000
Released —
Canceled —

Outstanding at March 31, 2016 1,649,556

As of March 31, 2016 , there was $1.1 million of total unrecognized compensation cost for Penn and GLPI PSUs held by GLPI employees that will be
cash-settled by GLPI, which will be recognized over the awards remaining weighted average vesting period of 0.84 years . For the three months ended March 31,
2016 and 2015, the Company recognized $0.4 million and
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$1.8 million , respectively of compensation expense associated with these awards. In addition, the Company also recognized $18 thousand for the three months
ended March 31, 2016 , relating to the 2016 first quarter $0.56 per share dividend paid on unvested PSUs. For the three months ended March 31, 2015 , the
Company recognized $0.1 million relating to the 2015 first quarter $0.55 per share dividend paid on unvested PSUs.

 
Upon the declaration of the Purging Distribution, GLPI options were adjusted in a manner that preserved both the pre-distribution intrinsic value of the

options and the pre-distribution ratio of the stock price to exercise price that existed immediately before the Purging Distribution. Additionally, upon declaration of
the Purging Distribution, holders of GLPI PSUs were credited with the special dividend, which will accrue and be paid, if applicable, on the vesting date of the
related PSU. Holders of GLPI restricted stock were entitled to receive the special dividend with respect to such restricted stock on the same date or dates that the
special dividend was payable on GLPI common stock to shareholders of GLPI generally.
 
5.               Acquisitions
 

In January 2014, the Company completed the asset acquisition of the real property associated with the Casino Queen in East St. Louis, Illinois for $140.7
million , including transaction fees of $0.7 million .  Simultaneously with the acquisition, GLPI also provided Casino Queen with a $43.0 million , five year term
loan at 7% interest, pre-payable at any time, which, together with the sale proceeds, completely refinanced and retired all of Casino Queen’s outstanding long-term
debt obligations. Since March 31, 2015, Casino Queen has been obligated to make mandatory principal payments on the loan on the last day of each calendar year
quarter equal to 1.25% of the original loan balance. As of March 31, 2016 , these mandatory principal payments, as well as additional principal payments have
reduced the balance of this loan to $27.8 million . The collectability of the remaining loan balance is reasonably assured, and as of March 31, 2016 the obligor has
made all mandatory principal and interest payments in full and on time and paid down additional principal toward the loan balance. The loan balance is recorded at
carrying value which approximates fair value. Interest income related to the loan is recorded in interest income within the Company's consolidated statement of
income in the period earned. GLPI leased the property back to Casino Queen on a triple-net basis on terms similar to those in the Penn Master Lease, resulting in
approximately $14.0 million in annual rent. The lease has an initial term of 15 years , and the tenant has an option to renew it at the same terms and conditions for
four successive five year periods.  

6.               Real Estate Investments
 

Real estate investments, net, represents investments in 19 rental properties and the corporate headquarters building and is summarized as follows:
 

 
March 31, 

2016  
December 31, 

2015

 

(in thousands)
Land and improvements $ 453,739  $ 453,739
Building and improvements 2,297,128  2,297,128
Construction in progress 7  —

Total real estate investments 2,750,874  2,750,867
Less accumulated depreciation (684,498)  (660,808)

Real estate investments, net $ 2,066,376  $ 2,090,059
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7.               Property and Equipment Used in Operations
 

Property and equipment used in operations, net, consists of the following and primarily represents the assets utilized in the TRS Properties: 

 
March 31, 

2016  
December 31, 

2015

 

(in thousands)
Land and improvements $ 31,187  $ 31,187
Building and improvements 117,284  117,314
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 112,553  112,227
Construction in progress 314  354

Total property and equipment 261,338  261,082
Less accumulated depreciation (134,583)  (131,335)

Property and equipment, net $ 126,755  $ 129,747

8.               Long-term Debt
 

Long-term debt is as follows: 

 
March 31, 

2016  
December 31, 

2015

 

(in thousands)
Senior unsecured credit facility $ 448,000  $ 490,000
$550 million 4.375% senior unsecured notes due November 2018 550,000  550,000
$1,000 million 4.875% senior unsecured notes due November 2020 1,000,000  1,000,000
$500 million 5.375% senior unsecured notes due November 2023 500,000  500,000
Capital lease 1,365  1,389
Total long-term debt 2,499,365  2,541,389
Less: unamortized debt issuance costs (30,380)  (31,048)
Total long-term debt, net of unamortized debt issuance costs 2,468,985  2,510,341
Less current maturities of long-term debt (104)  (102)

Long-term debt, net of current maturities $ 2,468,881  $ 2,510,239
 
The following is a schedule of future minimum repayments of long-term debt as of March 31, 2016 (in thousands): 

Within one year $ 104
2-3 years 998,223
4-5 years 1,000,245
Over 5 years 500,793

Total minimum payments $ 2,499,365
 
Senior Unsecured Credit Facility

The Company has a one billion dollar senior unsecured credit facility (the "Credit Facility"), consisting of a $700.0 million revolving credit facility and a
$300.0 million Term Loan A facility. On July 31, 2015, in connection with the announced Pinnacle acquisition, the Company entered into the first amendment to
the Credit Facility, which permits the Company to borrow an additional $825 million under a Term Loan A-1 facility. At March 31, 2016 , the Company had no
borrowings outstanding under the Term Loan A-1 facility. The Credit Facility matures on October 28, 2018.

At March 31, 2016 , the Credit Facility had a gross outstanding balance of $448.0 million , consisting of the $300.0 million Term Loan A facility and
$148.0 million of borrowings under the revolving credit facility. Additionally, at March 31, 2016 , the Company was contingently obligated under letters of credit
issued pursuant to the senior unsecured credit facility with face amounts aggregating approximately $0.9 million , resulting in $551.1 million of available
borrowing capacity under the revolving credit facility as of March 31, 2016 .
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The Credit Facility contains customary covenants that, among other things, restrict, subject to certain exceptions, the ability of GLPI and its subsidiaries
to grant liens on their assets, incur indebtedness, sell assets, make investments, engage in acquisitions, mergers or consolidations or pay certain dividends and other
restricted payments. The Credit Facility contains the following financial covenants, which are measured quarterly on a trailing four-quarter basis: a maximum total
debt to total asset value ratio, a maximum senior secured debt to total asset value ratio, a maximum ratio of certain recourse debt to unencumbered asset value and
a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio. In addition, GLPI is required to maintain a minimum tangible net worth and its status as a REIT on and after the effective
date of its election to be treated as a REIT, which the Company elected on its 2014 U.S. federal income tax return. GLPI is permitted to pay dividends to its
shareholders as may be required in order to maintain REIT status, subject to the absence of payment or bankruptcy defaults. GLPI is also permitted to make other
dividends and distributions subject to pro forma compliance with the financial covenants and the absence of defaults. The Credit Facility also contains certain
customary affirmative covenants and events of default, including the occurrence of a change of control and termination of the Penn Master Lease (subject to certain
replacement rights). The occurrence and continuance of an event of default under the Credit Facility will enable the lenders under the Credit Facility to accelerate
the loans and terminate the commitments thereunder. At March 31, 2016 , the Company was in compliance with all required covenants under the Credit Facility.

Senior Unsecured Notes
 
Each of the 4.375% Senior Unsecured Notes due 2018 (the "2018 Notes"); 4.875% Senior Unsecured Notes due 2020 (the "2020 Notes"); and 5.375%

Senior Unsecured Notes due 2023 (the "2023 Notes," and collectively with the 2018 Notes and 2020 Notes, the "Notes") contains covenants limiting the
Company’s ability to: incur additional debt and use its assets to secure debt; merge or consolidate with another company; and make certain amendments to the
Penn Master Lease. The Notes also require the Company to maintain a specified ratio of unencumbered assets to unsecured debt. These covenants are subject to a
number of important and significant limitations, qualifications and exceptions.

 
At March 31, 2016 , the Company was in compliance with all required covenants under the Notes.

Capital Lease

The Company assumed the capital lease obligation related to certain assets at its Aurora, Illinois property. GLPI recorded the asset and liability associated
with the capital lease on its balance sheet. The original term of the capital lease was 30 years and it will terminate in 2026.

Bridge Facility
Also in connection with the announced Pinnacle transaction, the Company entered into an amended and restated commitment letter dated July 31, 2015

(the "GLPI Commitment Letter") with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Bank of America, N.A., Fifth Third Bank, Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company, Wells
Fargo Bank, National Association, UBS AG, Stamford Branch, Credit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank, Suntrust Bank, Nomura Securities International,
Inc., Citizens Bank, National Association, Barclays and certain of their affiliates (collectively, the "GLPI Commitment Parties") to provide debt financing in
connection with the transaction. Pursuant to the GLPI Commitment Letter, the GLPI Commitment Parties have committed to provide a $1.875 billion senior
unsecured 364 - day term loan bridge facility (the "GLPI Bridge Facility"). Subsequent to March 31, 2016, through a combination of debt and equity offerings, the
Company raised the proceeds, which together with an incremental term loan under the Company's Credit Facility, are necessary to finance the Pinnacle transaction
and as such the Company does not intend to utilize the Bridge Facility to finance the Merger. See Note 15 for further information on the Company's respective debt
and equity offerings.

9.               Commitments and Contingencies
 
Litigation

Pursuant to a Separation and Distribution Agreement between Penn and GLPI, any liability arising from or relating to legal proceedings involving the
businesses and operations of Penn’s real property holdings prior to the Spin-Off (other than any liability arising from or relating to legal proceedings where the
dispute arises from the operation or ownership of the TRS Properties) will be retained by Penn, and Penn will indemnify GLPI (and its subsidiaries, directors,
officers, employees and agents and certain other related parties) against any losses it may incur arising from or relating to such legal proceedings. There can be no
assurance that Penn will be able to fully satisfy its indemnification obligations. Moreover, even if we ultimately succeed in recovering from Penn any amounts for
which we are liable, we may be temporarily required to bear those losses.
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The Company is subject to various legal and administrative proceedings relating to personal injuries, employment matters, commercial transactions, and
other matters arising in the normal course of business. The Company does not believe that the final outcome of these matters will have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations. In addition, the Company maintains what it believes is adequate insurance coverage to
further mitigate the risks of such proceedings. However, such proceedings can be costly, time consuming, and unpredictable and, therefore, no assurance can be
given that the final outcome of such proceedings may not materially impact the Company’s financial condition or results of operations. Further, no assurance can
be given that the amount or scope of existing insurance coverage will be sufficient to cover losses arising from such matters. 

10.               Dividends

The following table lists the dividends declared and paid by the Company during the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 :

Declaration Date  
Shareholder Record

Date  
Securities
Class  

Dividend Per
Share  Period Covered  Distribution Date  Dividend Amount

            (in thousands)

2016             

January 29, 2016  February 22, 2016  
Common

Stock  $ 0.56  First Quarter 2016  March 25, 2016  $ 65,345

             

2015             

February 3, 2015  March 10, 2015  
Common

Stock  $ 0.545  First Quarter 2015  March 27, 2015  $ 62,072

In addition for the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 , dividend payments were made to or accrued for GLPI restricted stock award holders
and for both GLPI and Penn unvested employee stock options in the amount of $0.3 million and $0.6 million , respectively.

11.        Segment Information

Consistent with how the Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker reviews and assesses the Company’s financial performance, the Company has two
reportable segments, GLP Capital, L.P. (a wholly-owned subsidiary of GLPI through which GLPI owns substantially all of its assets) ("GLP Capital") and the TRS
Properties. The GLP Capital reportable segment consists of the leased real property and represents the majority of the Company’s business. The TRS Properties
reportable segment consists of Hollywood Casino Perryville and Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge.

The following tables present certain information with respect to the Company’s segments.

 

 

 Three Months Ended March 31, 2016  Three Months Ended March 31, 2015

(in thousands)  GLP Capital  TRS Properties  Eliminations  (1)  Total  GLP Capital   TRS Properties  Eliminations  (1)  Total

Net revenues  $ 112,042  $ 36,778  $ —  $ 148,820  $ 110,898  $ 37,807  $ —  $ 148,705

Income from operations  60,770  6,867  —  67,637  57,600  7,200  —  64,800

Interest, net  32,884  2,601  (2,601)  32,884  28,968  2,600  (2,601)  28,967

Income before income taxes  30,487  4,266  —  34,753  31,233  4,600  —  35,833

Income tax expense  386  1,618  —  2,004  810  1,892  —  2,702

Net income  30,101  2,648  —  32,749  30,423  2,708  —  33,131

Depreciation  24,212  2,871  —  27,083  24,393  3,018  —  27,411

Capital project expenditures, net of reimbursements  164  101  —  265  609  5,031  —  5,640

Capital maintenance expenditures  —  362  —  362  —  951  —  951

 
(1)               Amounts in the "Eliminations" column represent the elimination of intercompany interest payments from the Company’s TRS Properties business segment to its GLP

Capital business segment.
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12.        Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information is as follows:

 

Three Months Ended March 31,

 

2016  2015
 (in thousands)

Cash paid for income taxes, net of refunds received $ 234  $ —
Cash paid for interest 2,569  2,615

13.        Related Party Transactions

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company entered into an Agreement of Sale (the "Sale Agreement") with Wyomissing Professional
Center Inc. ("WPC") and acquired certain land in an office complex known as The Wyomissing Professional Center Campus, located in Wyomissing, Pennsylvania
for its corporate headquarters building. Also in connection with completion of construction of its corporate headquarters building, the Company entered into an
agreement (the "Construction Management Agreement") with CB Consulting Group LLC (the "Construction Manager") during the year ended December 31, 2014.
Construction of the Company's corporate headquarters building was completed in October 2015 and the Company did not incur additional expenses related to the
building with WPC or the Construction Manager subsequent to 2015.

The Company paid $39,000 to WPC during the three months ended March 31, 2015 in connection with construction costs WPC paid on the Company's
behalf. Pursuant to the Construction Management Agreement, the Construction Manager, among other things, provided certain construction management services
to the Company in exchange for three percent ( 3% ) of the total cost of work to complete the building construction project and certain additional costs for added
services. During the three months ended March 31, 2015, the Company made no payments to the Construction Manager.

Upon completion of the building in October 2015, the Company became responsible for the payment of monthly common area maintenance fees to the
Wyomissing Professional Center Owners' Association ("WPCOA"). During the three months ended March 31, 2016 , the Company paid approximately $5,500 to
the WPCOA.

Peter M. Carlino, the Company’s Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer, is also the sole owner of WPC and associated with the
WPCOA. In addition, Mr. Carlino’s son owns a material interest in the Construction Manager.

14.        Supplementary Condensed Consolidating Financial Information of Parent Guarantor and Subsidiary Issuers
 

GLPI guarantees the Notes issued by its subsidiaries, GLP Capital, L.P. and GLP Financing II, Inc. Each of the subsidiary issuers is 100% owned by
GLPI. The guarantees of GLPI are full and unconditional. GLPI is not subject to any material or significant restrictions on its ability to obtain funds from its
subsidiaries by dividend or loan or to transfer assets from such subsidiaries, except as provided by applicable law. No subsidiaries of GLPI guarantee the Notes.

 
Summarized financial information as of March 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 and for the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 for GLPI as

the parent guarantor, for GLP Capital, L.P. and GLP Financing II, Inc. as the subsidiary issuers and the other subsidiary non-issuers is presented below.
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At March 31, 2016 
Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet  

Parent 
Guarantor  

Subsidiary 
Issuers  

Other 
Subsidiary 
Non-Issuers  Eliminations  Consolidated

 

 (in thousands)
Assets  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Real estate investments, net  $ —  $ 1,932,368  $ 134,008  $ —  $ 2,066,376
Property and equipment, used in operations, net  —  24,129  102,626  —  126,755
Cash and cash equivalents  —  23,592  37,969  —  61,561
Prepaid expenses  —  5,679  1,023  660  7,362
Other current assets  —  55,059  3,317  —  58,376
Goodwill  —  —  75,521  —  75,521
Other intangible assets  —  —  9,577  —  9,577
Debt issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization of $9,500 at

March 31, 2016  —  —  —  —  —
Loan receivable  —  —  27,813  —  27,813
Intercompany loan receivable  —  193,595  —  (193,595)  —
Intercompany transactions and investment in subsidiaries  (258,814)  190,496  (55,975)  124,293  —
Deferred tax assets, non-current  —  —  2,500  —  2,500
Other assets  —  256  132  —  388

Total assets  $ (258,814)  $ 2,425,174  $ 338,511  $ (68,642)  $ 2,436,229

           
Liabilities  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Accounts payable  $ —  $ 349  $ 141  $ —  $ 490
Accrued expenses  —  7,684  4,659  —  12,343
Accrued interest  —  42,848  —  —  42,848
Accrued salaries and wages  —  3,415  1,681  —  5,096
Gaming, property, and other taxes  —  22,246  3,105  —  25,351
Income taxes  —  112  (772)  660  —
Current maturities of long-term debt  —  104  —  —  104
Other current liabilities  —  17,014  1,376  —  18,390
Long-term debt, net of current maturities and unamortized debt

issuance costs  —  2,468,881  —  —  2,468,881
Intercompany loan payable  —  —  193,595  (193,595)  —
Deferred rental revenue  —  121,335  —  —  121,335
Deferred tax liabilities, non-current  —  —  206  —  206

Total liabilities  —  2,683,988  203,991  (192,935)  2,695,044
           
Shareholders’ (deficit) equity  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Preferred stock ($.01 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized, no
shares issued or outstanding at March 31, 2016)  —  —  —  —  —

Common stock ($.01 par value, 500,000,000 shares authorized,
117,027,925 shares issued at March 31, 2016)  1,170  1,170  1,170  (2,340)  1,170

Additional paid-in capital  962,826  962,828  1,105,718  (2,068,546)  962,826
Retained (deficit) earnings  (1,222,810)  (1,222,812)  (972,368)  2,195,179  (1,222,811)

Total shareholders’ (deficit) equity  (258,814)  (258,814)  134,520  124,293  (258,815)

Total liabilities and shareholders’ (deficit) equity  $ (258,814)  $ 2,425,174  $ 338,511  $ (68,642)  $ 2,436,229
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Three months ended March 31, 2016 
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations  

Parent 
Guarantor  

Subsidiary 
Issuers  

Other 
Subsidiary 
Non-Issuers  Eliminations  Consolidated

 

 (in thousands)
Revenues  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Rental  $ —  $ 96,672  $ 3,543  $ —  $ 100,215
Real estate taxes paid by tenants  —  11,315  512  —  11,827

Total rental revenue  —  107,987  4,055  —  112,042
Gaming  —  —  35,383  —  35,383
Food, beverage and other  —  —  2,776  —  2,776

Total revenues  —  107,987  42,214  —  150,201
Less promotional allowances  —  —  (1,381)  —  (1,381)

Net revenues  —  107,987  40,833  —  148,820
Operating expenses  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Gaming  —  —  18,934  —  18,934
Food, beverage and other  —  —  2,053  —  2,053
Real estate taxes  —  11,320  887  —  12,207
General and administrative  —  15,228  5,678  —  20,906
Depreciation  —  23,451  3,632  —  27,083

Total operating expenses  —  49,999  31,184  —  81,183
Income from operations  —  57,988  9,649  —  67,637
           
Other income (expenses)  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Interest expense  —  (33,401)  —  —  (33,401)
Interest income  —  —  517  —  517
Intercompany dividends and interest  —  9,744  5,399  (15,143)  —

Total other income (expenses)  —  (23,657)  5,916  (15,143)  (32,884)
           

Income (loss) before income taxes  —  34,331  15,565  (15,143)  34,753
Income tax expense  —  386  1,618  —  2,004

Net income (loss)  $ —  $ 33,945  $ 13,947  $ (15,143)  $ 32,749
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Three months ended March 31, 2016 
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows  

Parent
Guarantor  

Subsidiary
Issuers  

Other
Subsidiary
Non-Issuers  Eliminations  Consolidated

 

 (in thousands)
Operating activities  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Net income (loss)  $ —  $ 33,945  $ 13,947  $ (15,143)  $ 32,749
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by

(used in) operating activities:  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Depreciation  —  23,451  3,632  —  27,083
Amortization of debt issuance costs  —  5,582  —  —  5,582
Gains on dispositions of property  —  —  (15)  —  (15)
Deferred income taxes  —  —  (79)  —  (79)
Stock-based compensation  —  4,572  —  —  4,572
Straight-line rent adjustments  —  13,956  —  —  13,956
(Increase) decrease,  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets  —  1,313  274  2,262  3,849
Other assets  —  —  (1)  —  (1)
Intercompany  —  (579)  579  —  —

Increase (decrease),  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
Accounts payable  —  181  (136)  —  45
Accrued expenses  —  (803)  (184)  —  (987)
Accrued interest  —  25,225  —  —  25,225
Accrued salaries and wages  —  (7,313)  (1,310)  —  (8,623)
Gaming, property and other taxes  —  (40)  (161)  —  (201)
Income taxes  —  152  2,110  (2,262)  —
Other current and non-current liabilities  —  713  (10)  —  703

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities  —  100,355  18,646  (15,143)  103,858
Investing activities  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Capital project expenditures, net of reimbursements  —  (164)  (101)  —  (265)
Capital maintenance expenditures  —  —  (362)  —  (362)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment  —  —  233  —  233
Principal payments on loan receivable  —  —  1,537  —  1,537

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities  —  (164)  1,307  —  1,143
Financing activities  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Dividends paid  (65,670)  —  —  —  (65,670)
Proceeds from exercise of options  23,089  —  —  —  23,089
Financing costs  —  (709)  —  —  (709)
Payments of long-term debt  —  (42,025)  —  —  (42,025)
Intercompany financing  42,581  (42,581)  (15,143)  15,143  —

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities  —  (85,315)  (15,143)  15,143  (85,315)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  —  14,876  4,810  —  19,686
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period  —  8,716  33,159  —  41,875

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period  $ —  $ 23,592  $ 37,969  $ —  $ 61,561
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At December 31, 2015 Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet  
Parent

Guarantor  
Subsidiary
Issuers  

Other
Subsidiary
Non-Issuers  Eliminations  Consolidated

 

 (in thousands)
Assets  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Real estate investments, net  $ —  $ 1,955,290  $ 134,769  $ —  $ 2,090,059
Property and equipment, used in operations, net  —  24,494  105,253  —  129,747
Cash and cash equivalents  —  8,716  33,159  —  41,875
Prepaid expenses  —  3,768  1,218  2,922  7,908
Other current assets  —  54,838  2,883  —  57,721
Goodwill  —  —  75,521  —  75,521
Other intangible assets  —  —  9,577  —  9,577
Debt issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization of $5,937 at

December 31, 2015  —  3,563  —  —  3,563
Loan receivable  —  —  29,350  —  29,350
Intercompany loan receivable  —  193,595  —  (193,595)  —
Intercompany transactions and investment in subsidiaries  (253,514)  191,112  (46,418)  108,820  —
Deferred tax assets, non-current  —  —  2,554  (107)  2,447
Other assets  —  256  131  —  387

Total assets  $ (253,514)  $ 2,435,632  $ 347,997  $ (81,960)  $ 2,448,155

           
Liabilities  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Accounts payable  $ —  $ 127  $ 279  $ —  $ 406
Accrued expenses  —  4,737  4,843  —  9,580
Accrued interest  —  17,623  —  —  17,623
Accrued salaries and wages  —  10,728  2,991  —  13,719
Gaming, property, and other taxes  —  21,949  2,753  —  24,702
Income taxes  —  (41)  (2,881)  2,922  —
Current maturities of long-term debt  —  102  —  —  102
Other current liabilities  —  16,303  1,384  —  17,687
Long-term debt, net of current maturities and unamortized debt

issuance costs  —  2,510,239  —  —  2,510,239
Intercompany loan payable  —  —  193,595  (193,595)  —
Deferred rental revenue  —  107,379  —  —  107,379
Deferred tax liabilities, non-current  —  —  339  (107)  232

Total liabilities  —  2,689,146  203,303  (190,780)  2,701,669
           
Shareholders’ (deficit) equity  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Preferred stock ($.01 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized, no
shares issued or outstanding at December 31, 2015)  —  —  —  —  —

Common stock ($.01 par value, 500,000,000 shares authorized,
115,594,321 shares issued at December 31, 2015)  1,156  1,156  1,156  (2,312)  1,156

Additional paid-in capital  935,220  935,221  1,088,058  (2,023,279)  935,220
Retained (deficit) earnings  (1,189,890)  (1,189,891)  (944,520)  2,134,411  (1,189,890)

Total shareholders’ (deficit) equity  (253,514)  (253,514)  144,694  108,820  (253,514)

Total liabilities and shareholders’ (deficit) equity  $ (253,514)  $ 2,435,632  $ 347,997  $ (81,960)  $ 2,448,155
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Three months ended March 31, 2015 
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations  

Parent
Guarantor  

Subsidiary
Issuers  

Other
Subsidiary

Non-
Issuers  Eliminations  Consolidated

 

 (in thousands)
Revenues  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Rental  $ —  $ 94,048  $ 3,500  $ —  $ 97,548
Real estate taxes paid by tenants  —  12,827  523  —  13,350

Total rental revenue  —  106,875  4,023  —  110,898
Gaming  —  —  36,379  —  36,379
Food, beverage and other  —  —  2,815  —  2,815

Total revenues  —  106,875  43,217  —  150,092
Less promotional allowances  —  —  (1,387)  —  (1,387)

Net revenues  —  106,875  41,830  —  148,705
Operating expenses  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
Gaming  —  —  19,016  —  19,016
Food, beverage and other  —  —  2,184  —  2,184
Real estate taxes  —  12,827  928  —  13,755
General and administrative  —  15,556  5,983  —  21,539
Depreciation  —  23,632  3,779  —  27,411

Total operating expenses  —  52,015  31,890  —  83,905
Income from operations  —  54,860  9,940  —  64,800
           
Other income (expenses)  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
Interest expense  —  (29,562)  —  —  (29,562)
Interest income  —  10  585  —  595
Intercompany dividends and interest  —  10,086  400  (10,486)  —

Total other income (expenses)  —  (19,466)  985  (10,486)  (28,967)
           

Income (loss) before income taxes  —  35,394  10,925  (10,486)  35,833
Income tax expense  —  810  1,892  —  2,702

Net income (loss)  $ —  $ 34,584  $ 9,033  $ (10,486)  $ 33,131
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Three months ended March 31, 2015 
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows  

Parent
Guarantor  

Subsidiary
Issuers  

Other
Subsidiary
Non-Issuers  Eliminations  Consolidated

 

 (in thousands)
Operating activities  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Net income (loss)  $ —  $ 34,584  $ 9,033  $ (10,486)  $ 33,131
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used

in) operating activities:  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Depreciation  —  23,632  3,779  —  27,411
Amortization of debt issuance costs  —  2,020  —  —  2,020
Losses on dispositions of property  —  —  1  —  1
Deferred income taxes  —  —  (386)  —  (386)
Stock-based compensation  —  4,394  —  —  4,394
Straight-line rent adjustments  —  13,956  —  —  13,956
(Increase) decrease,  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets  —  (593)  1,431  —  838
Other assets  —  —  —  —  —

     Intercompany  —  2,365  (2,365)  —  —
(Decrease) increase,  

0

 
0

 
 

 
0

  
Accounts payable  —  (1,800)  455  —  (1,345)
Accrued expenses  —  408  7  —  415
Accrued interest  —  24,903  —  —  24,903
Accrued salaries and wages  —  (5,730)  (464)  —  (6,194)
Gaming, property and other taxes  —  (613)  207  —  (406)
Income taxes  —  847  725  —  1,572
Other current and non-current liabilities  —  532  (83)  —  449

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities  —  98,905  12,340  (10,486)  100,759
Investing activities      

 

 
 

 
 

Capital project expenditures, net of reimbursements  —  (609)  (5,031)  —  (5,640)
Capital maintenance expenditures  —  —  (951)  —  (951)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment  —  —  5  —  5
Principal payments on loan receivable  —  —  538  —  538
Other investing activities  —  (36)  —  —  (36)

Net cash used in investing activities  —  (645)  (5,439)  —  (6,084)
Financing activities  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Dividends paid  (62,651)  —  —  —  (62,651)
Proceeds from exercise of options  10,394  —  —  —  10,394
Financing costs  —  —  —  —  —
Payments of long-term debt  —  (33,024)  —  —  (33,024)
Intercompany financing  49,614  (49,666)  (10,434)  10,486  —

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities  (2,643)  (82,690)  (10,434)  10,486  (85,281)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents  (2,643)  15,570  (3,533)  —  9,394
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period  2,643  4,450  28,880  —  35,973

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period  $ —  $ 20,020  $ 25,347  $ —  $ 45,367
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15.        Subsequent Events

On March 28, 2016, the Company announced that it had commenced an offering to sell 19,000,000 shares of its common stock in an underwritten public
offering.  On March 31, 2016, the Company announced that it had priced and upsized its previously announced underwritten public offering from 19,000,000
shares of its common stock, par value $0.01 per share, to 25,000,000 shares of its common stock at a public offering price of $30.00 per share. The Company also
granted the underwriters a 30 -day option to purchase up to an additional 3,750,000 shares of its common stock, which was exercised in full. On April 6, 2016, the
Company announced the closing of its previously announced underwritten public offering of 28,750,000 shares of its common stock at a public offering price of
$30.00 per share, before underwriting discount, which includes 3,750,000 shares of common stock issued in connection with the exercise in full of the
underwriters’ option to purchase additional shares.

The Company received approximately $826 million in net proceeds from the offering. The Company intends to use the net proceeds from this offering to
partially fund its previously announced acquisition of substantially all of the real estate assets of Pinnacle, including the repayment, redemption and/or discharge of
a portion of certain debt of Pinnacle to be assumed by the Company in connection with the Merger and the payment of transaction-related fees and expenses. The
offering was not conditioned upon the successful completion of the Merger or any other potential source of financing. Pending such uses, the Company intends to
use the net proceeds of this offering to reduce borrowings under the Company’s revolving credit facility or invest in interest-bearing accounts and short-term,
interest-bearing securities.

On April 11, 2016, the Company commenced and priced a public debt offering of $400 million of 4.375% senior unsecured notes due 2021 and $975
million of 5.375% senior unsecured notes due 2026 (collectively the "Notes"). The Notes will be issued by the Company's operating partnership, GLP Capital L.P.,
and GLP Financing II, a wholly owned subsidiary of its operating partnership, and guaranteed by the Company.

The estimated net proceeds from the offering of Notes are expected to be approximately $1.357 billion . The Company intends to use the net proceeds
from this offering to partially fund its previously announced acquisition of substantially all of the real estate assets of Pinnacle, including for the repayment,
redemption and/or discharge of a portion of certain debt of Pinnacle to be assumed by the Company in connection with the Merger and the payment of transaction-
related fees and expenses. The offering of the Notes is expected to close on April 28, 2016, the expected closing date of the Merger, subject to certain closing
conditions. If the Merger does not close on the closing date of the Notes offering, the proceeds of the Notes offering will be placed in escrow pending the
consummation of the Merger. If the Merger does not close prior to June 30, 2016, the Issuers will be required to redeem the Notes.

On April 25, 2016 , the Company declared its second quarter dividend of $0.56 per common share, payable on June 17, 2016 to shareholders of record on
June 2, 2016 .
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
 

Our Operations

GLPI is a self-administered and self-managed Pennsylvania REIT. GLPI was incorporated in Pennsylvania on February 13, 2013, as a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Penn. On November 1, 2013, Penn contributed to GLPI, through a series of internal corporate restructurings, substantially all of the assets and
liabilities associated with Penn's real property interests and real estate development business, as well as the assets and liabilities of Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge
and Hollywood Casino Perryville, which are referred to as the "TRS Properties," and then spun-off GLPI to holders of Penn's common and preferred stock in a tax-
free distribution. The Company elected on its U.S. federal income tax return for its taxable year beginning on January 1, 2014 to be treated as a REIT and the
Company, together with an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, GLP Holdings, Inc., jointly elected to treat each of GLP Holdings, Inc., Louisiana
Casino Cruises, Inc. and Penn Cecil Maryland, Inc. as a "taxable REIT subsidiary" effective on the first day of the first taxable year of GLPI as a REIT. As a result
of the Spin-Off, GLPI owns substantially all of Penn's former real property assets and leases back most of those assets to Penn for use by its subsidiaries, under the
Penn Master Lease, and GLPI also owns and operates the TRS Properties through its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, GLP Holdings, Inc.. The assets and
liabilities of GLPI were recorded at their respective historical carrying values at the time of the Spin-Off.

GLPI’s primary business consists of acquiring, financing, and owning real estate property to be leased to gaming operators in triple-net lease
arrangements. As of March 31, 2016 , GLPI’s portfolio consisted of 21 gaming and related facilities, which included the TRS Properties, the real property
associated with 18 gaming and related facilities of Penn, and the real property associated with the Casino Queen. These facilities are geographically diversified
across 12 states.

We expect to grow our portfolio by pursuing opportunities to acquire additional gaming facilities to lease to gaming operators under prudent terms,
including our proposed acquisition of substantially all of the real estate assets of Pinnacle, which we expect to close on April 28, 2016 and our December 2015
announcement of the resolution of the previously disclosed litigation with the Meadows and our entry into an amended purchase agreement with CCR, the owner
of the Meadows. Furthermore, in March 2016, the Company announced it had entered into an agreement to sell the entities holding the Meadows gaming and
racing licenses and operating assets to Pinnacle. GLPI will lease the Pinnacle and the Meadows assets to Pinnacle under separate triple-net leases. The Meadows
transactions are expected to close during the late third quarter of 2016. However, we cannot predict the actual dates on which the transactions will be completed
because each transaction is subject to conditions beyond such parties' control.

Additionally, we believe we have the ability to leverage the expertise our management team has developed over the years to secure additional avenues for
growth beyond the gaming industry. Accordingly, we anticipate we will be able to effect strategic acquisitions unrelated to the gaming industry as well as other
acquisitions that may prove complementary to GLPI’s gaming facilities.
 

As of March 31, 2016 , the majority of our earnings are the result of the rental revenue from the lease of our properties to a subsidiary of Penn pursuant to
the Penn Master Lease. The Penn Master Lease is a triple-net operating lease with an initial term of 15  years, with no purchase option, followed by four 5  year
renewal options (exercisable by Penn) on the same terms and conditions. The rent structure under the Penn Master Lease includes a fixed component, a portion of
which is subject to an annual 2% escalator if certain rent coverage ratio thresholds are met, and a component that is based on the performance of the facilities,
which is adjusted, subject to certain floors (i) every five years by an amount equal to 4% of the average change to net revenues of all facilities under the Penn
Master Lease (other than Hollywood Casino Columbus and Hollywood Casino Toledo) during the preceding five years , and (ii) monthly by an amount equal to
20% of the change in net revenues of Hollywood Casino Columbus and Hollywood Casino Toledo during the preceding month. Additionally, we have rental
revenue from the Casino Queen property which is leased back to a third party operator on a triple-net basis, with an initial term of 15 years, followed by four 5
 year renewal options. The terms and conditions of the Casino Queen lease are similar to the Penn Master Lease. In addition to rent, the tenants are required to pay
the following: (1) all facility maintenance, (2) all insurance required in connection with the leased properties and the business conducted on the leased properties,
(3) taxes levied on or with respect to the leased properties (other than taxes on the income of the lessor) and (4) all utilities and other services necessary or
appropriate for the leased properties and the business conducted on the leased properties. 

 
Additionally, in accordance with ASC 605, "Revenue Recognition" ("ASC 605"), the Company records revenue for the real estate taxes paid by its tenants

on the leased properties with an offsetting expense in general and administrative expense within the consolidated statement of income, as the Company believes it
is the primary obligor.
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Gaming revenue for our TRS Properties is derived primarily from gaming on slot machines and to a lesser extent, table game and poker revenue, which is
highly dependent upon the volume and spending levels of customers at our TRS Properties. Other revenues at our TRS Properties are derived from our dining,
retail, and certain other ancillary activities.

 
Segment Information
 

Consistent with how our Chief Operating Decision Maker reviews and assesses our financial performance, we have two reportable segments, GLP Capital
and the TRS Properties. The GLP Capital reportable segment consists of the leased real property and represents the majority of our business. The TRS Properties
reportable segment consists of Hollywood Casino Perryville and Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge.

 
Executive Summary
 
Financial Highlights
 

We reported net revenues and income from operations of $148.8 million and $67.6 million , respectively, for the three months ended March 31, 2016 ,
compared to $148.7 million and $64.8 million , respectively, for the corresponding period in the prior year. The major factors affecting our results for the three
months ended March 31, 2016 , as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2015 , were:

 
• Rental revenue of $112.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2016 , and $110.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015 . Rental

revenue increased by $1.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2016 , as compared to the corresponding period in the prior year, primarily due to
the impact of the Penn rent escalator and improved results at our two properties with monthly variable rent in 2016, offset by a decrease in real estate
taxes. Rental revenue included real estate taxes of $11.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2016 and $13.4 million for the three months ended
March 31, 2015 . Under ASC 605, "Revenue Recognition," we record revenue for the real estate taxes paid by our tenants with an offsetting expense in
real estate taxes within our consolidated statement of income, as we have concluded we are the primary obligor under our triple-net leases.

    
• Net revenues for our TRS Properties decreased by $1.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2016 , as compared to the corresponding period in

the prior year, primarily due to decreased gaming revenues at Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge, resulting from lower volumes, partially offset by increased
gaming revenues at Hollywood Casino Perryville.

 
• Total operating expenses decreased by $2.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2016 , as compared to the corresponding period in the prior

year, driven by decreases in general and administrative expenses of $0.6 million and real estate taxes of $1.5 million for the three months ended
March 31, 2016 , as compared to the corresponding period in the prior year.

• Other income and expenses increased $3.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2016 , as compared to the corresponding period in the prior year,
driven by a $3.8 million increase in interest expense during the same period.

• Decreased income tax expense of $0.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2016 , as compared to the corresponding period in the prior year.
 
• Net income decreased by $0.4 million  for the three months ended March 31, 2016 , as compared to the corresponding period in the prior year, primarily

due to the variances explained above.

Segment Developments
 

The following are recent developments that have had or are likely to have an impact on us by segments:
 

GLP Capital

• On March 29, 2016, the Company entered into an agreement with Pinnacle to sell the entities holding the Meadows gaming and racing licenses and
operating assets to Pinnacle for $138 million in cash, while we will retain ownership of the land and buildings of the Meadows. At closing, which is
expected during the late third quarter of 2016 contemporaneously with our closing of the Meadows Acquisition, we will lease the real estate assets of the
Meadows to Pinnacle pursuant to a triple-net lease with an initial 10-year term, with the option to renew for three successive
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five- year terms and a final four-year term, at Pinnacle’s option. The lease will have a fixed base rent component, with customary annual escalators, plus a
percentage rent component. The initial aggregate annual rent payable under the lease is expected to be approximately $25.5 million, comprised of
approximately $14.0 million base rent and approximately $11.5 million percentage rent. The lease contains an annual escalator provision for up to 5% of
the base rent, with rent coverage thresholds of 1.8 in year one, 1.9 in year two and 2.0 in year three and thereafter. The escalator remains at 5% for ten
years or until total rent is $31 million, at which point the escalator will be reduced to 2% annually thereafter. The percentage rent is adjusted every two
years by 4% of the amount by which average property net revenue increases or decreases from the prior period. However, we cannot predict the actual
date on which the transaction will be completed because such transaction is subject to conditions beyond our control.

• On December 15, 2015, the Company entered into the Amended and Restated Membership Interest Purchase Agreement with CCR to acquire the
Meadows, which is located in Washington, Pennsylvania for a base purchase price of $440 million, inclusive of the $10 million previously paid to CCR,
subject to certain closing adjustments, including adjustments based on the amount of working capital and other operational cash balances. The amended
purchase agreement amends and restates the original purchase agreement entered into among the same parties on May 13, 2014. As described above,
GLPI expects to sell the gaming operations of the Meadows to Pinnacle, while retaining ownership of the land and buildings. The transaction is expected
to close during the late third quarter of 2016. However, we cannot predict the actual date on which the transaction will be completed because such
transaction is subject to conditions beyond our control.

• On July 20, 2015, the Company entered into a definitive agreement with Pinnacle to acquire, subject to the terms and conditions thereof, substantially all
of Pinnacle's real estate assets in a series of transactions including a spin-off by Pinnacle of its gaming and other operating assets into a new publicly-
traded company followed by a merger of Pinnacle with a wholly owned subsidiary of GLPI. The transaction consideration includes 0.85 shares of GLPI
common stock to be issued in respect of each issued and outstanding share of Pinnacle common stock and certain Pinnacle equity awards. In addition,
GLPI will assume $2.7 billion of Pinnacle's debt, which will be refinanced at closing. Subsequent to March 31, 2016, through a combination of debt and
equity offerings, the Company raised the proceeds which, together with an incremental term loan under the Company's Credit Facility, are necessary to
finance the Pinnacle transaction. See Note 15 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for further information on the Company's respective debt and equity
offerings. The transaction is expected to close on April 28, 2016. However, we cannot predict the actual date on which the transaction will be completed
because such transaction is subject to conditions beyond our control. See Note 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for further details surrounding the
Pinnacle merger.

 
TRS Properties

 
• In November 2012, voters approved legislation authorizing a sixth casino in Prince George’s County, Maryland. The new law also changed the tax rate

casino operators pay the state, varying from casino to casino, allowed all casinos in Maryland to be open 24 hours per day for the entire year, and
permitted casinos to directly purchase slot machines in exchange for gaming tax reductions. As a result of slot machines purchased during 2015,
Hollywood Casino Perryville's effective tax rate was reduced to 62.5 percent from 67 percent in 2015 and to 61 percent in 2016. The option for an
additional 5 percent tax reduction is possible in 2019 if an independent commission agrees. In December 2013, the license for the sixth casino in Prince
George’s County was granted. The $1.3 billion casino resort, which is currently under construction and expected to open in the fourth quarter of 2016,
could adversely impact Hollywood Casino Perryville’s financial results.

Critical Accounting Estimates
 

We make certain judgments and use certain estimates and assumptions when applying accounting principles in the preparation of our consolidated
financial statements. The nature of the estimates and assumptions are material due to the levels of subjectivity and judgment necessary to account for highly
uncertain factors or the susceptibility of such factors to change. We have identified the accounting for income taxes, real estate investments, and goodwill and other
intangible assets as critical accounting estimates, as they are the most important to our financial statement presentation and require difficult, subjective and
complex judgments.

 
We believe the current assumptions and other considerations used to estimate amounts reflected in our consolidated financial statements are appropriate.

However, if actual experience differs from the assumptions and other considerations used in estimating amounts reflected in our consolidated financial statements,
the resulting changes could have a material adverse
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effect on our consolidated results of operations and, in certain situations, could have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition.
 
For further information on our critical accounting estimates, see Item 7. "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations" and the Notes to our audited consolidated financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K. There has been no material change to
these estimates for the three months ended March 31, 2016 .
 
Results of Operations
 

The following are the most important factors and trends that contribute or will contribute to our operating performance:
 

• The fact that a wholly-owned subsidiary of Penn is the lessee of substantially all of our properties pursuant to the Penn Master Lease and accounts for a
significant portion of our revenues. We expect to grow our portfolio by pursuing opportunities to acquire additional gaming facilities, such as those
owned by Pinnacle and CCR, to lease to gaming operators under prudent terms.
 

• The fact that the rules and regulations of U.S. federal income taxation are constantly under review by legislators, the IRS and the U.S. Department of the
Treasury. Changes to the tax laws or interpretations thereof, with or without retroactive application, could materially and adversely affect GLPI investors
or GLPI.
 

• The risks related to economic conditions and the effect of such conditions on consumer spending for leisure and gaming activities, which may negatively
impact our gaming tenants and operators.
 
The consolidated results of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 are summarized below:

        

 

Three Months Ended March 31,

 

2016  2015

 

(in thousands)
Revenues

 

 
 

Rental $ 100,215  $ 97,548
Real estate taxes paid by tenants 11,827  13,350

Total rental revenue 112,042  110,898
Gaming 35,383  36,379
Food, beverage and other 2,776  2,815

Total revenues 150,201  150,092
Less promotional allowances (1,381)  (1,387)

Net revenues 148,820  148,705
Operating expenses

 

 
 

Gaming 18,934  19,016
Food, beverage and other 2,053  2,184
Real estate taxes 12,207  13,755
General and administrative 20,906  21,539
Depreciation 27,083  27,411

Total operating expenses 81,183  83,905

Income from operations $ 67,637  $ 64,800
 

31



Table of Contents

Certain information regarding our results of operations by segment for the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 is summarized below:
 

 

Three Months Ended March 31,

 

2016  2015  2016  2015

 

Net Revenues  Income from Operations

 

(in thousands)
GLP Capital $ 112,042  $ 110,898  $ 60,770  $ 57,600
TRS Properties 36,778  37,807  6,867  7,200

Total $ 148,820  $ 148,705  $ 67,637  $ 64,800
 
Adjusted EBITDA, FFO and AFFO
 

Funds From Operations ("FFO"), Adjusted Funds From Operations ("AFFO") and Adjusted EBITDA are non-GAAP financial measures used by the
Company as performance measures for benchmarking against the Company’s peers and as internal measures of business operating performance. The Company
believes FFO, AFFO and Adjusted EBITDA provide a meaningful perspective of the underlying operating performance of the Company’s current business. This is
especially true since these measures exclude real estate depreciation and we believe that real estate values fluctuate based on market conditions rather than
depreciating in value ratably on a straight-line basis over time. 

FFO is a non-GAAP financial measure that is considered a supplemental measure for the real estate industry and a supplement to GAAP measures. The
National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts defines FFO as net income (computed in accordance with GAAP), excluding (gains) or losses from sales of
property and real estate depreciation. We have defined AFFO as FFO excluding stock based compensation expense, debt issuance costs amortization, other
depreciation and straight-line rent adjustments, reduced by maintenance capital expenditures. Finally, we have defined Adjusted EBITDA as net income excluding
interest, taxes on income, depreciation, (gains) or losses from sales of property, stock based compensation expense and straight-line rent adjustments.

 
FFO, AFFO and Adjusted EBITDA are not recognized terms under GAAP. Because certain companies do not calculate FFO, AFFO and Adjusted

EBITDA in the same way and certain other companies may not perform such calculation, those measures as used by other companies may not be consistent with
the way the Company calculates such measures and should not be considered as alternative measures of operating profit or net income. The Company’s
presentation of these measures does not replace the presentation of the Company’s financial results in accordance with GAAP.
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The reconciliation of the Company’s net income per GAAP to FFO, AFFO, and Adjusted EBITDA for the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015
is as follows:

 
        

 
Three Months Ended  

 March 31,

 

2016  2015
 (in thousands)
Net income $ 32,749  $ 33,131
(Gains) or losses from dispositions of property (15)  1
Real estate depreciation 23,691  23,926
Funds from operations $ 56,425  $ 57,058
Straight-line rent adjustments 13,956  13,956
Other depreciation 3,392  3,485
Amortization of debt issuance costs 5,582  2,020
Stock based compensation 4,572  4,394
Maintenance CAPEX (362)  (951)
Adjusted funds from operations $ 83,565  $ 79,962
Interest, net 32,884  28,967
Income tax expense 2,004  2,702
Maintenance CAPEX 362  951
Amortization of debt issuance costs (5,582)  (2,020)

Adjusted EBITDA $ 113,233  $ 110,562

The reconciliation of each segment’s net income per GAAP to FFO, AFFO, and Adjusted EBITDA for the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015
is as follows: 

 

 GLP Capital  TRS Properties

Three Months Ended March 31,  2016  2015  2016  2015

 

 (in thousands)
         
Net income  $ 30,101  $ 30,423  $ 2,648  $ 2,708
(Gains) or losses from dispositions of property  —  —  (15)  1
Real estate depreciation  23,691  23,926  —  —
Funds from operations  $ 53,792  $ 54,349  $ 2,633  $ 2,709
Straight-line rent adjustments  13,956  13,956  —  —
Other depreciation  521  467  2,871  3,018
Debt issuance costs amortization  5,582  2,020  —  —
Stock based compensation  4,572  4,394  —  —
Maintenance CAPEX  —  —  (362)  (951)
Adjusted funds from operations  $ 78,423  $ 75,186  $ 5,142  $ 4,776
Interest, net (1)  30,283  26,367  2,601  2,600
Income tax expense  386  810  1,618  1,892
Maintenance CAPEX  —  —  362  951
Debt issuance costs amortization  (5,582)  (2,020)  —  —

Adjusted EBITDA  $ 103,510  $ 100,343  $ 9,723  $ 10,219
 

 
(1)  Interest expense, net for the GLP Capital segment is net of intercompany interest eliminations of $2.6 million for both the three months ended

March 31, 2016 and 2015 .
 

FFO, AFFO, and Adjusted EBITDA for our GLP Capital segment were $53.8 million , $78.4 million  and $103.5 million , respectively, for the three
months ended March 31, 2016 . FFO, AFFO, and Adjusted EBITDA for our GLP Capital segment were $54.3 million , $75.2 million  and $100.3 million ,
respectively, for the three months ended March 31, 2015 . The
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slight decline in net income for our GLP Capital segment for the three months ended March 31, 2016 , as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2015 was
primarily driven by a $3.8 million increase in interest expense, partially offset by a $1.1 million increase in rental revenues, a $2.0 million decrease in operating
expenses and a $0.4 million decline in income tax expense. The changes described above, as well as lower real estate depreciation also led to lower FFO for the
three months ended March 31, 2016 , as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2015 . The increase in AFFO for our GLP Capital segment was primarily
driven by the changes described above, as well as, increased amortized debt issuance costs associated with the bridge financing related to the Pinnacle acquisition,
which is added back for purposes of calculating AFFO. The $3.2 million increase in Adjusted EBITDA for our GLP Capital segment was primarily driven by the
increases in AFFO described above, as well as, a higher add back for interest, less the increase in amortized debt issuance costs, which are non-cash and excluded
from Adjusted EBITDA.

Net income and FFO for our TRS Properties segment were relatively flat for the three months ended March 31, 2016 , as compared to the three months
ended March 31, 2015 , while AFFO increased by $0.4 million and Adjusted EBITDA decreased by $0.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2016 , as
compared to the three months ended March 31, 2015 . AFFO for our TRS Properties segment increased by $0.4 million for the three months ended March 31,
2016, as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2015 , primarily due a decrease in maintenance capital expenditures. Adjusted EBITDA for our TRS
Properties segment increased by $0.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2016, as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2015 , primarily due to
the reasons described above and a decrease in income tax expense.
 
Revenues
 

Revenues for the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 were as follows (in thousands): 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Percentage

Three Months Ended March 31,  2016  2015  Variance  Variance

Total rental revenue  $ 112,042  $ 110,898  $ 1,144  1.0 %
Gaming  35,383  36,379  (996)  (2.7)%
Food, beverage and other  2,776  2,815  (39)  (1.4)%
Total revenues  150,201  150,092  109  0.1 %
Less promotional allowances  (1,381)  (1,387)  6  0.4 %

Net revenues  $ 148,820  $ 148,705  $ 115  0.1 %
 

Total rental revenue
 

For the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 , rental income was $112.0 million and $110.9 million , respectively, for our GLP Capital segment,
which included $11.8 million and $13.4 million of revenue for the real estate taxes paid by our tenants on the leased properties.  In accordance with ASC 605, the
Company is required to present the real estate taxes paid by its tenants on the leased properties as revenue with an offsetting expense on its consolidated statement
of operations, as the Company believes it is the primary obligor.

Rental revenue increased $1.1 million or 1.0% for the three months ended March 31, 2016 , as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2015 ,
primarily due to the impact of the Penn rent escalator and improved results at our two properties with monthly variable rent, offset by a decrease in real estate
taxes. Specifically, the Penn rent escalator and the variable rent properties contributed an increase of $2.6 million of rental revenue for three months ended
March 31, 2016 , as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2015 , while the property taxes decreased by $1.5 million in three months ended March 31,
2016 , as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2015 .

Gaming revenue
 

Gaming revenue for our TRS Properties segment decreased by $1.0 million , or 2.7% , for the three months ended March 31, 2016 , as compared to the
three months ended March 31, 2015 , primarily due to a $1.4 million decrease in gaming revenues at Hollywood Casino Baton Rouge, resulting from lower
volumes, partially offset by increased gaming revenues of $0.4 million at Hollywood Casino Perryville.

34



Table of Contents

Operating Expenses
 

Operating expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 were as follows (in thousands):
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Percentage

Three Months Ended March 31,  2016  2015  Variance  Variance

Gaming  $ 18,934  $ 19,016  $ (82)  (0.4)%
Food, beverage and other  2,053  2,184  (131)  (6.0)%
Real estate taxes  12,207  13,755  (1,548)  (11.3)%
General and administrative  20,906  21,539  (633)  (2.9)%
Depreciation  27,083  27,411  (328)  (1.2)%

Total operating expenses  $ 81,183  $ 83,905  $ (2,722)  (3.2)%
 

 
Real estate taxes
 

Real estate taxes decreased by $1.5 million , or 11.3% , for the three months ended March 31, 2016 , as compared to the three months ended March 31,
2015 , primarily due to the settlement of a property tax appeal in late 2015 (at one of our properties leased to Penn), which reduced our expense for the three
months ended March 31, 2016. Although this amount is paid by our tenants, we are required to present this amount in both revenues and expenses for financial
reporting purposed under ASC 605.

General and administrative expense
 

General and administrative expense decreased by $0.6 million , or 2.9% , for the three months ended March 31, 2016 , as compared to the three months
ended March 31, 2015 . The decrease in general and administrative expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2016 , as compared to the three months ended
March 31, 2015 was comprised of a number of immaterial changes to accounts aggregating to $0.6 million.
 
Other income (expenses)
 

Other income (expenses) for the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 were as follows (in thousands): 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Percentage

Three Months Ended March 31,  2016  2015  Variance  Variance

Interest expense  $ (33,401)  $ (29,562)  $ (3,839)  (13.0)%
Interest income  517  595  (78)  (13.1)%

Total other expenses  $ (32,884)  $ (28,967)  $ (3,917)  (13.5)%
 
Interest expense
 

Interest expense increased by $3.8 million or 13.0% for the three months ended March 31, 2016 , as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2015 ,
primarily due to the amortization of bridge financing fees related to the Pinnacle transaction through interest expense.

Taxes

During the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, income tax expense was approximately $2.0 million and $2.7 million , respectively. Our
effective tax rate (income taxes as a percentage of income from operations before income taxes) was 5.8% for the three months ended March 31, 2016 , as
compared to 7.5% for the three months ended March 31, 2015.

 
Liquidity and Capital Resources
 

Our primary sources of liquidity and capital resources are cash flow from operations, borrowings from banks, and proceeds from the issuance of debt and
equity securities.
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Net cash provided by operating activities was $103.9 million  and $100.8 million , respectively, during the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 .
The increase in net cash provided by operating activities of $3.1 million  for the three months ended March 31, 2016 compared to the corresponding period in the
prior year was primarily comprised of an increase in cash receipts from customers/tenants of $1.7 million and a decrease in cash paid to employees of $1.4 million.
The increase in cash receipts collected from our customers/tenants for the three months ended March 31, 2016 compared to the corresponding period in the prior
year was primarily due to the impact of the Penn rent escalator and improved results at our two properties with monthly variable rent, partially offset by a net
decrease in our TRS Properties’ net revenues.

 
Investing activities provided cash of $1.1 million during the three months ended March 31, 2016 and used cash of $6.1 million during three months ended

March 31, 2015 .  Net cash provided by investing activities during the three months ended March 31, 2016 included principal payments of $1.5 million made by
Casino Queen on their five year term loan and proceeds from the sale of property and equipment of $0.2 million, partially offset by capital expenditures of $0.6
million . Net cash used in investing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2015 included capital expenditures of $6.6 million, primarily related to
Hollywood Casino Perryville's $5.0 million purchase of slot machines, associated with its initiative to directly purchase slot machines in exchange for gaming tax
reductions, partially offset by principal payments of $0.5 million made by Casino Queen on its term loan.

 
Financing activities used net cash of $85.3 million during both the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 . Net cash used in financing activities for

the three months ended March 31, 2016 included dividend payments of $65.7 million and repayments of long-term debt and financing costs of $42.7 million ,
partially offset by proceeds from stock option exercises of $23.1 million . Net cash used in financing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2015 included
dividend payments of $62.7 million and repayments of long-term debt of $33.0 million , partially offset by proceeds from stock options exercises of $10.4 million .
 
Capital Expenditures
 

Capital expenditures are accounted for as either capital project or capital maintenance (replacement) expenditures. Capital project expenditures are for
fixed asset additions that expand an existing facility or create a new facility. The cost of properties developed by the Company include costs of construction,
property taxes, interest and other miscellaneous costs incurred during the development period until the project is substantially complete and available for
occupancy. Capital maintenance expenditures are expenditures to replace existing fixed assets with a useful life greater than one year that are obsolete, worn out or
no longer cost effective to repair.

 
Capital project expenditures were $0.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2016 , as compared to $5.6 million for the three months ended

March 31, 2015 . Capital project expenditures for the three months ended March 31, 2015 primarily consisted of Hollywood Casino Perryville's direct purchases of
slot machines. During the three months ended March 31, 2015, Hollywood Casino Perryville made direct purchases of slot machines totaling $5.0 million, which
resulted in a decrease of gaming taxes paid on slot machine revenues. Prior to Perryville's slot machine purchases, all slot machines were owned by the state.

During the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 , the TRS Properties spent approximately $0.4 million and $1.0 million , respectively, for capital
maintenance expenditures. The majority of the capital maintenance expenditures were for slot machines and slot machine equipment. Our tenants are responsible
for capital maintenance expenditures at our leased properties.

 
Debt

Senior Unsecured Credit Facility
 

The Company has a one billion dollar Credit Facility, consisting of a $700.0 million revolving credit facility and a $300.0 million Term Loan A facility.
On July 31, 2015, in connection with the announced Pinnacle acquisition, the Company entered into the first amendment to the Credit Facility, which permits the
Company to borrow an additional $825 million under a Term Loan A-1 facility. At March 31, 2016 , the Company had no borrowings outstanding under the Term
Loan A-1 facility. At March 31, 2016 , the Credit Facility had a gross outstanding balance of $448.0 million , consisting of the $300.0 million Term Loan A facility
and $148.0 million of borrowings under the revolving credit facility. Additionally, at March 31, 2016 , the Company was contingently obligated under letters of
credit issued pursuant to the senior unsecured credit facility with face amounts aggregating approximately $0.9 million , resulting in $551.1 million of available
borrowing capacity under the revolving credit facility as of March 31, 2016 . The Credit Facility matures on October 28, 2018.
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The Credit Facility contains customary covenants that, among other things, restrict, subject to certain exceptions, the ability of GLPI and its subsidiaries
to grant liens on their assets, incur indebtedness, sell assets, make investments, engage in acquisitions, mergers or consolidations or pay certain dividends and other
restricted payments. The Credit Facility contains the following financial covenants, which are measured quarterly on a trailing four-quarter basis: a maximum total
debt to total asset value ratio, a maximum senior secured debt to total asset value ratio, a maximum ratio of certain recourse debt to unencumbered asset value and
a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio. In addition, GLPI is required to maintain a minimum tangible net worth and its status as a REIT on and after the effective
date of its election to be treated as a REIT, which the Company elected on its 2014 U.S. federal income tax return. GLPI is permitted to pay dividends to its
shareholders as may be required in order to maintain REIT status, subject to the absence of payment or bankruptcy defaults. GLPI is also permitted to make other
dividends and distributions subject to pro forma compliance with the financial covenants and the absence of defaults. The Credit Facility also contains certain
customary affirmative covenants and events of default, including the occurrence of a change of control and termination of the Penn Master Lease (subject to certain
replacement rights). The occurrence and continuance of an event of default under the Credit Facility will enable the lenders under the Credit Facility to accelerate
the loans and terminate the commitments thereunder. At March 31, 2016 , the Company was in compliance with all required covenants under the Credit Facility.

Senior Unsecured Notes
 
The Notes contain covenants limiting the Company’s ability to: incur additional debt and use its assets to secure debt; merge or consolidate with another

company; and make certain amendments to the Penn Master Lease. The Notes also require the Company to maintain a specified ratio of unencumbered assets to
unsecured debt. These covenants are subject to a number of important and significant limitations, qualifications and exceptions.

 
At March 31, 2016 , the Company was in compliance with all required covenants under the Notes.

Capital Lease

The Company assumed the capital lease obligation related to certain assets at its Aurora, Illinois property. GLPI recorded the asset and liability associated
with the capital lease on its balance sheet. The original term of the capital lease was 30 years and it will terminate in 2026.

Bridge Facility
Also in connection with the announced Pinnacle transaction, the Company entered into an amended and restated commitment letter dated July 31, 2015

(the "GLPI Commitment Letter") with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Bank of America, N.A., Fifth Third Bank, Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company, Wells
Fargo Bank, National Association, UBS AG, Stamford Branch, Credit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank, Suntrust Bank, Nomura Securities International,
Inc., Citizens Bank, National Association, Barclays and certain of their affiliates (collectively, the "GLPI Commitment Parties") to provide debt financing in
connection with the transaction. Pursuant to the GLPI Commitment Letter, the GLPI Commitment Parties have committed to provide a $1.875 billion senior
unsecured 364 - day term loan bridge facility (the "GLPI Bridge Facility"). Subsequent to March 31, 2016, through a combination of debt and equity offerings, the
Company raised the proceeds, which together with an incremental term loan under the Company's Credit Facility, are necessary to finance the Pinnacle transaction,
and as such the Company does not intend to utilize the Bridge Facility to finance the Merger. See Note 15 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for further
information on the Company's respective debt and equity offerings.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
 

We face market risk exposure in the form of interest rate risk. These market risks arise from our debt obligations. We have no international operations.
Our exposure to foreign currency fluctuations is not significant to our financial condition or results of operations.

 
GLPI’s primary market risk exposure is interest rate risk with respect to its indebtedness of $2,499.4 million at March 31, 2016 . Furthermore, $2,050.0

million of our obligations at March 31, 2016 , are the senior unsecured notes that have fixed interest rates with maturity dates ranging from three to eight years. An
increase in interest rates could make the financing of any acquisition by GLPI more costly, as well as increase the costs of its variable rate debt obligations. Rising
interest rates could also limit GLPI’s ability to refinance its debt when it matures or cause GLPI to pay higher interest rates upon refinancing and increase interest
expense on refinanced indebtedness. GLPI may manage, or hedge, interest rate risks related to its borrowings by means of interest rate swap agreements. GLPI also
expects to manage its exposure to interest rate risk by maintaining a mix of fixed and variable rates for its indebtedness. However, the provisions of the Code
applicable to REITs substantially limit GLPI’s ability to hedge its assets and liabilities.

 
The table below provides information at March 31, 2016 about our financial instruments that are sensitive to changes in interest rates. For debt

obligations, the table presents notional amounts maturing in each fiscal year and the related weighted-average interest rates by maturity dates. Notional amounts
are used to calculate the contractual payments to be exchanged by maturity date and the weighted-average interest rates are based on implied forward LIBOR rates
at March 31, 2016 .
 

 

4/01/16-
12/31/16  

01/01/17-
12/31/17  

01/01/18-
12/31/18  

01/01/19-
12/31/19  

01/01/20-
12/31/20  Thereafter  Total  

Fair Value at
3/31/2016

 

(in thousands)

Long-term debt:
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Fixed rate $ —  $ —  $ 550,000  $ —  $ 1,000,000  $ 500,000  $ 2,050,000  $ 2,084,925

Average interest rate
 

 
 

 4.38%    4.88%  5.38%  
 

 
 

                

Variable rate $ —  $ —  $ 448,000  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 448,000  $ 440,160

Average interest rate (1) 
 

 
 

 3.03%      
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
(1)            Estimated rate, reflective of forward LIBOR plus the spread over LIBOR applicable to variable-rate borrowing.
 
ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
 
Evaluation of Controls and Procedures
 

The Company’s management, under the supervision and with the participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, has
evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined under Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), as of March 31, 2016 , which is the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. In
designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognized that any controls and procedures, no matter how well-designed and
operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and management was required to apply its judgment in evaluating the
cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Based on this evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that
the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of March 31, 2016 to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in
reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is (i) recorded, processed, summarized, evaluated and reported, as applicable, within the time periods specified in
the United States Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms and (ii) accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, including the
Company’s principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
 

There were no changes that occurred during the fiscal quarter covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal controls over financial reporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
 
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
 

Information in response to this Item is incorporated by reference to the information set forth in "Note 9: Commitments and Contingencies" in the Notes to
the condensed consolidated financial statements in Part I of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

 
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
 

Risk factors that affect our business and financial results are discussed in Part I, "Item 1A. Risk Factors," of our Annual Report on Form 10-K. There have
been no material changes in our risk factors from those previously disclosed in our Annual Report other than as set forth below. You should carefully consider the
risks described in our Annual Report and below, which could materially affect our business, financial condition or future results. The risks described in our Annual
Report and below are not the only risks we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial also may
materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, and/or operating results. If any of the risks actually occur, our business, financial condition, and/or
results of operations could be negatively affected.

Our future results will suffer if we do not effectively manage our expanded portfolio of properties following the
Merger and any failure by us to effectively manage our portfolio could have a material and adverse effect
on our business and our ability to make distributions to shareholders, as required for us to continue to qualify
as a REIT.

Following the completion of Merger, the size of our business will materially increase beyond its current size.
Our future success depends, in part, upon our ability to manage this expanded business, which will pose challenges for management, including challenges related
to acting as landlord to a larger portfolio of properties and associated increased costs and complexity. There can be no assurances that we will be successful. In
addition, we depend on our tenants to operate the properties that we own in a manner that generates revenues sufficient to allow the tenants to meet their
obligations to us, including their obligations to pay rent, maintain certain insurance coverage, pay real estate taxes and maintain the properties in a manner so as not
to jeopardize their operating licenses or regulatory status. The ability of our tenants to fulfill their obligations may depend, in part, upon the overall profitability of
their operations. Our financial position could be materially
weakened if any of our tenants were unable to meet their obligations to us or failed to renew or extend any lease as such lease expires, or if we were unable to lease
or re-lease our properties on economically favorable terms.

We will be significantly dependent on two tenants and their respective subsidiaries until we substantially
diversify our portfolio and an event that has a material and adverse effect on either tenant’s respective
business, financial position or results of operations could have a material and adverse effect on our business,
financial position or results of operations.

Following completion of the Merger, substantially all of our revenue will be based on the revenue derived
under the master leases with Pinnacle and Penn. Because these master leases are triple-net leases, we will depend on Pinnacle and Penn to pay all insurance, taxes,
utilities and maintenance and repair expenses in connection with these leased properties and to indemnify, defend and hold us harmless from and against various
claims, litigation and liabilities arising in connection with their businesses. There can be no assurance that either Pinnacle or Penn will have sufficient assets,
income or access to financing to enable them to satisfy their payment obligations under the master leases. The inability or unwillingness of either Pinnacle or Penn
to meet their subsidiaries’ rent obligations and other obligations under the master leases, in each case, could
materially and adversely affect our business, financial position or results of operations, including our ability to pay dividends to our shareholders as required to
maintain our status as a REIT.

Due to our dependence on rental payments from Pinnacle and Penn (and their respective subsidiaries) as our primary source of revenue, we may be
limited in our ability to enforce our rights under the master leases or to terminate the master leases with respect to any particular property. Failure by Pinnacle or
Penn to comply with the terms of their respective master leases or to comply with the gaming regulations to which the leased properties are subject could require us
to find another lessee for such leased property and there could be a decrease or cessation of rental payments by either Pinnacle or Penn, as the case may be. In such
event, we may be unable to locate a suitable lessee at similar rental rates or at all, which would have the effect of reducing our rental revenues.

We may be required to make distributions in order to purge ourselves of any historic earnings of Pinnacle.

While we expect that we will not inherit any earnings from Pinnacle due to its distribution to its shareholders prior to the Merger, in the event we do
inherit any such earnings, we will be required to distribute those earnings prior to the end of this
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year. Any such earnings could be material and could require us to sell assets or incur debt in order to satisfy such distribution requirement.

We could be subject to tax on any unrealized net built-in gains in the assets we expect to acquire from Pinnacle.

The assets we expect to acquire from Pinnacle are expected to have significant built-in-gains. Because Pinnacle
is, and prior to the Merger will be, a C corporation, if we dispose of any such appreciated assets during the five-year period following the Merger, we will be
subject to tax at the highest corporate tax rates on any gain from such assets to the extent of the built-in-gain in such assets at the time of the Merger. We would be
subject to this tax liability even if we continue to qualify and maintains our status as a REIT. Any recognized built-in gain will retain its character as ordinary
income or capital gain and will be taken into account in determining REIT taxable income and our distribution requirement. Any tax on the recognized built-in gain
will reduce REIT taxable income. We may choose not to sell in a taxable transaction appreciated assets we might otherwise sell during the five-year period in
which the built-in gain tax applies in order to avoid the built-in gain tax. However, there can be no assurances that such a taxable transaction will not occur. If we
sell such assets in a taxable transaction, the amount of corporate tax that we will pay will vary depending on the actual amount of net built-in gain or loss present in
those assets as of the time we became a REIT. The amount of tax could be significant.

We may have future capital needs and may not be able to obtain additional financing on acceptable terms.

We may incur additional indebtedness in the future to refinance our existing indebtedness or to finance newly-acquired properties, such as the proposed
Pinnacle transaction. Any significant additional indebtedness could require a substantial portion of our cash flow to make interest and principal payments due on
our indebtedness. Greater demands on our cash resources may reduce funds available to us to pay dividends, make capital expenditures and acquisitions, or carry
out other aspects of our business strategy. Increased indebtedness can also limit our ability to adjust rapidly to changing market conditions, make us more
vulnerable to general adverse economic and industry conditions and create competitive disadvantages for us compared to other companies with relatively lower
debt levels and/or borrowing costs. Increased future debt service obligations may limit our operational flexibility, including our ability to acquire properties,
finance or refinance our properties, contribute properties to joint ventures or sell properties as needed.

We may be unable to obtain additional financing or financing on favorable terms or our operating cash flow may be insufficient to satisfy our financial
obligations under indebtedness outstanding from time to time (if any). Among other things, the absence of an investment grade credit rating or any credit rating
downgrade could increase our financing costs and could limit our access to financing sources. If financing is not available when needed, or is available on
unfavorable terms, we may be unable to develop new or enhance our existing properties, complete acquisitions or otherwise take advantage of business
opportunities or respond to competitive pressures, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
 

The Company did not repurchase any shares of common stock or sell any unregistered securities during the three months ended March 31, 2016 .
Subsequent to March 31, 2016, the Company closed its previously announced registered public offering of 28,750,000 shares of its common stock at a public
offering price of $30.00 per share, before underwriting discount. See Note 15 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for further information on this equity offering.

 
ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

     None.
 

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
 

Not applicable.
 

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION
 

Not applicable.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit
 

Description of Exhibit

   

2.1
 

Amendment No. 1, dated as of March 25, 2016, to Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July 20, 2015, by and among Pinnacle
Entertainment, Inc., Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. and Gold Merger Sub, LLC. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the
Company's current report on Form 8-K filed on March 28, 2016).

   

4.1
 

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 28, 2016, among GLP Capital, L.P., GLP Financing II, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, as Trustee. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's current report on Form 8-K filed on
March 28, 2016).

   

10.1

 

First Amendment, dated as of March 25, 2016, to Amendment No. 1, dated as of July 31, 2015, to the Credit Agreement dated as of
October 28, 2013 among GLP Capital, L.P., the several banks and other financial institutions party thereto, JPMorgan Chase Bank,
N.A., as Administrative Agent and the various other parties thereto. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's
current report on Form 8-K filed on March 28, 2016).

   
31.1*

 

CEO Certification pursuant to rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
   
31.2*

 

CFO Certification pursuant to rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
   
32.1*

 

CEO Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
   
32.2*

 

CFO Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
   

101*

 

Interactive data files pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T: (i) the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets at March 31, 2016 and
December 31, 2015, (ii) the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015,
(iii) the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Deficit for the three months ended March 31, 2016, (iv) the
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 and (v) the notes to the
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

 

 

* Filed or furnished, as applicable, herewith 
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SIGNATURE
 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
 

 

GAMING AND LEISURE PROPERTIES, INC.
  
April 26, 2016 By: /s/ William J. Clifford
  

William J. Clifford
  

Chief Financial Officer
  

(Principal Financial Officer)
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EXHIBIT INDEX
 

Exhibit
 

Description of Exhibit

   
2.1

 

Amendment No. 1, dated as of March 25, 2016, to Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July 20, 2015, by and among Pinnacle
Entertainment, Inc., Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. and Gold Merger Sub, LLC. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the
Company's current report on Form 8-K filed on March 28, 2016).

   
4.1

 

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 28, 2016, among GLP Capital, L.P., GLP Financing II, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, as Trustee. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's current report on Form 8-K filed on March
28, 2016).

   
10.1

 

First Amendment, dated as of March 25, 2016, to Amendment No. 1, dated as of July 31, 2015, to the Credit Agreement dated as of
October 28, 2013 among GLP Capital, L.P., the several banks and other financial institutions party thereto, JPMorgan Chase Bank,
N.A., as Administrative Agent and the various other parties thereto. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's current
report on Form 8-K filed on March 28, 2016).

   
31.1*

 

CEO Certification pursuant to rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
   

31.2*
 

CFO Certification pursuant to rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
   

32.1*
 

CEO Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
   

32.2*
 

CFO Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
   

101*

 

Interactive data files pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T: (i) the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets at March 31, 2016 and
December 31, 2015, (ii) the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015,
(iii) the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Deficit for the three months ended March 31, 2016, (iv) the
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 and (v) the notes to the
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

 

 

    
* Filed or furnished, as applicable, herewith 
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Exhibit 31.1
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) OR 15d-14(a) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
 

I, Peter M. Carlino, certify that:
 
1.                                       I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc.;
 
2.                                       Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
 
3.                                       Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
 
4.                                       The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:
 

(a)                                  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 
(b)                                  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the

effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 
(c)                                   Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent

fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
 

5.                                       The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 

(a)                                  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 
(b)                                  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control

over financial reporting.
 

April 26, 2016 /s/ Peter M. Carlino
 

Name: Peter M. Carlino
 

Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) OR 15d-14(a) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
 

I, William J. Clifford, certify that:
 
1.                                       I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc.;
 
2.                                       Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
 
3.                                       Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
 
4.                                       The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:
 

(a)                                  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 
(b)                                  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the

effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 
(c)                                   Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent

fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
 

5.                                       The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 

(a)                                  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 
(b)                                  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control

over financial reporting.
 

April 26, 2016 /s/ William J. Clifford
 

Name: William J. Clifford
 

Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
 

In connection with the quarterly report of Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2016 , as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Peter M. Carlino, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that, to my knowledge:

 
1.                                       The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and
 
2.                                       The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the

Company.
 

 

/s/ Peter M. Carlino
 

Peter M. Carlino
 

Chief Executive Officer
 

April 26, 2016



Exhibit 32.2
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002,

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
 

In connection with the quarterly report of Gaming and Leisure Properties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2016 , as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, William J. Clifford, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that, to my knowledge:

 
1.                                       The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and
 
2.                                       The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the

Company.
 

 

/s/ William J. Clifford
 

William J. Clifford
 

Chief Financial Officer
 

April 26, 2016


